
REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD 
 
Venue: Town Hall,  

Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham. 

Date: Wednesday, 11th July, 2007 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Minutes of the previous meeting held on 13th June, 2007.  (copy attached) 

(Pages 1 - 5) 
  

 
4. Matters arising  
  

 
5. York Consulting Case Study Report.  (report attached) (Pages 6 - 47) 
  Asset Manager to report. 

- to present a briefing note to the Board. 
 
6. Industrial Land and Floorspace 2006.  (report attached) (Pages 48 - 61) 
 Economic Strategy Manager and Research & Spatial Development Officer to 

report. 
 -  to report details on the amount of floorspace and available development land 
in the Borough and how this has changed over the year. 

 
7. Strong and Prosperous Communities - The Local Government White Paper 

October 2006 - Community Buildings Review and Area Asset Management 
Plans - Making Assets Work, the Quirk Review Findings.  (report attached) 
(Pages 62 - 84) 

 Asset Manager to report. 
- to propose an integrated comprehensive strategy and implementation 
programme. 

 
8. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 The following items are likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 

public as being exempt under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006) (information relates to 
the financial or business affairs). 

 
 

 



9. Town Centre Safety Manager.  (report attached) (Pages 85 - 94) 
 Town Centre Manager and Programmes Officer, to report. 

-  to note the approval of RERF. 
 
10. Employment of Police Architectural Liaison Officer.  (report attached) (Pages 

95 - 98) 
 Development Team Manager to report. 

-  to note approval of RERF. 
 
11. Rotherham Economic Regeneration Fund.  (report attached) (Pages 99 - 112) 
 Programmes Officer to report. 

-  to report details of project activity during 2006/07. 
 
12. Aston-cum-Aughton Service Centre - Progress Report.  (report attached) 

(Pages 113 - 117) 
 Asset Manager to report. 

- to provide an update on progress of the Aston-cum-Aughton Service 
Centre. 

 
13. Land at Longfellow Drive.  (report attached) (Pages 118 - 126) 
 Valuation Manager and HMR Manager, Rotherham East, to report. 

- to report details of a proposed extra care housing development. 
 
14. Land at Ridgeway Road, East Herringthorpe for extension to Cemetery.  (report 

attached) (Pages 127 - 131) 
 Strategic Property Manager to report. 

- To seek approval for the appropriation of the above-mentioned land 
from Asset Management Service to Neighbourhood Services.  

 
15. Land at Milton Street, Swinton.  (report attached) (Pages 132 - 136) 
 Strategic Property Manager to report. 

- to seek authority to settle a claim for registered title on land at Milton 
Street, Swinton. 

 
16. Land and Property Bank - Capital Receipts update.  (report attached) (Pages 

137 - 141) 
 Strategic Property Manager to report. 

- to provide an update on the current position. 
 

For information:- 
 

 
17. Date, time and venue of next meeting:  
 (Note the August recess) 

 
WEDNESDAY, 12TH SEPTEMBER, 2007 AT 10.00 A.M. AT THE TOWN 
HALL, ROTHERHAM 

 



 

 

REGENERATION AND ASSET BOARD 
Wednesday, 13th June, 2007 

 
 
Present:- Councillors Ellis, Rushforth, Smith, Stone and Wyatt.:   
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Hussain, R. S. Russell and 
Sharman.  
 
1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN  

 
 Resolved:-  That Councillor Stone be appointed Chair. 

 
(Councillor Stone in the Chair) 
 

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 

 Resolved:-  That Councillor Sharman be appointed Vice-Chair. 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING HELD ON 17TH MAY, 2007  
 

 Consideration was given to the minutes of the previous meeting of the 
Regeneration and Asset Board held on 17th May, 2007. 
 
Resolved:-  That the minutes be approved as a correct record. 
 

4. MATTERS ARISING  
 

 There were no matters arising from the previous minutes. 
 
(The Chairman authorised consideration of the following item in order for 
the Council to comply with legislation.) 
 

5. SMOKE FREE LEGISLATION - REQUEST FOR FUNDING FROM THE 
MINOR STRATEGIC CAPITAL INVESTMENT BLOCK  
 

 Consideration was given to a report, presented by the Asset Manager, 
outlining issues around the Smoke-free legislation which came into effect 
as from 1st July, 2007. 
 
It was reported that in order to comply with the legislation the Council had 
to erect a compliant signs to all Council buildings where the legislation 
applies.  The report outlined the background to the legislation and the 
works required in order for the Council to comply with the legislation. 
 
An outline of the works required was set out in the report, together with 
details of the cost. 
 
Members commented on:- 
 

Agenda Item 3Page 1



 

 

- the total amount of funding which has been allocated, over and 
above that which had been budgeted for, which Government 
required Councils to find in order to comply with their initiatives. 

- procurement/tendering process and value for money 
- no smoking requirement in Council vehicles 

 
 
Resolved:-  That a sum of £25,000 be allocated from the 2007/2008 minor 
strategic capital investment block to enable the authority to comply with 
the Smoke-free legislation which comes into effect from 1st July, 2007.  
 

6. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 Resolved:-  That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 
1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following 
items of business on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of 
exempt information as defined  in Paragraph3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended March 2006) (information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the Council)). 
 

7. AUCTION RESULTS AND COMMERCIAL PROPERTY UPDATE  
 

 Consideration was given to a report, presented by the Principal Valuer, 
detailing the sale, by auction, of two surplus assets, together with an 
update on the disposal of other commercial property. 
 
The report detailed the current position with the remaining properties in 
the portfolio and it was reported that the remaining properties were 
currently under review, and that the Neighbourhoods Directorate was on 
target to identify which it wished to keep and those it wished to dispose of.  
A further report would be presented to the November meeting of this 
Board. 
 
Particular reference was made to:- 
 

- Town centre properties 
- Reresby House 
- Buildings occupied by community groups 
- Maintenance responsibilities 

 
It was pointed out that all remaining property disposal receipts would 
contribute to the Capital Programme. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the current position be noted. 
 
(2)  That a further report on the remaining properties be submitted to the 
November meeting of the Regeneration and Asset Board. 
 
 

Page 2



 

 

Resolved:-  That the report be noted. 
 

8. LAND AND PROPERTY:  CAPITAL RECEIPTS UPDATE  
 

 Consideration was given to a report, presented by the Asset Manager, 
highlighting the changes to the forecast of capital receipts resulting in a 
revision of the Council’s capital programme. 
 
It was pointed out that the capital receipts for 2007 would exceed the 
target set.  However in future years the ability to raise capital through 
disposals would diminish. 
 
Particular reference was made to Beecham Court, Swinton, noting that 
the anticipated receipt was an estimate for the site, as the property had 
now been demolished. 
             
Resolved:-  That the position on the current status of the capital receipts 
which support the capital programme be noted. 
 

9. APPLICATION TO REGISTER LAND AT THORPE HESLEY AS A 
TOWN OR VILLAGE GREEN  
 

 Further to Minute No. 28 of the meeting of the Regeneration and Asset 
Board held on 12th July, 2006 and Minute No. 78 of the meeting of the 
Cabinet Member for Economic and Development Services held on 17th 
August, 2006, consideration was given to a report, presented by the Asset 
Manager, updating the Board on the current position regarding the 
objection made by the Council, as landowner, against the application 
received from the Scholes and Thorpe Action Group (STAG) under 
section 13 of the Commons Registration Act 1965, in respect of Council 
owned land in Thorpe Hesley. 
 
The following issues were raised:- 
 

- the Council acting as the Objector, Landowner and the 
Registration Authority 

- instruction to the Council’s approved partner solicitors to act on 
its behalf  

- the Council’s defence 
- referral to a non-statutory public inquiry 
- the outcome of the inquiry and any recommendations in respect 

of the defence of any future applications 
- legal costs, and funding thereof 
- the Oxford case 
- national problem 
- maintenance responsibilities 
- timescale 
- staffing resources 

 
It was noted that the outcome of this application would set the principles 

Page 3



 

 

for any future applications which the Council would have to abide by. 
 
Those present discussed the need for a strategy and/or policy for dealing 
with any future applications in the event that that the Council lost this 
case. 
 
It was agreed that there was a need to identify what fallow land the 
Council owned, and what it would cost to fence and erect signs, and also 
a need to survey, review and map all the small pockets of land in housing 
estates 
 
Reference was also made to the implications of the Council being both 
landowner and Registering Authority and the need to consider if there 
were options to delegate these responsibilities elsewhere. 
 
It was agreed that this issue should be included on the Council’s Risk 
Register 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the issues raised in pursuing this case be noted. 
 
(2) That a further report be submitted to the next meeting of this 
Board on the progress of the case, together with clarification of the legal 
and financial issues, and including an outline of the anticipated timescale.  
 
(3) That, as part of the Council’s submission, it be made clear to the 
Action Group, that if the Group was successful, then the Council would 
not maintain this area. 
 
(4) That the issue be included on the Council’s  Risk Register 
 
(5)     That the outcome of further investigation of the issues raised 
(including a survey across the Borough of other sites and the implications 
should the decision be made against the Council) be incorporated in to 
the review of Community Buildings; the investigations to include a 
systematic trawl of all estates with the assistance of the Neighbourhoods 
Directorate. 
 

(5) That consideration be given to the formulation of a strategy and/or 
policy for dealing with future similar applications. 

 
(The Chairman authorised consideration of the following item in order to 
review the membership of the sub-group and ensure continuity of its 
work/progress.) 
 

10. TOWN CENTRE DEVELOPMENT PROJECT BOARD - REVIEW OF 
MEMBERSHIP 2007/2008  
 

 It was reported that a review of the membership of the above group was 
now necessary in view of the new Cabinet Member portfolios and 
composition of the Regeneration and Asset Board. 

Page 4



 

 

 
Resolved:-  That the Director of Asset Management revised and review 
the composition and remit of this project board, and report to the next 
meeting of the Regeneration and Asset Board. 
 

11. DATE, TIME AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 Resolved:-  That the next meeting of the Regeneration and Asset Board 
be held on WEDNESDAY, 11TH JULY, 2007 at 10 a.m. at the Town Hall, 
Moorgate Street, Rotherham. 
 

 

Page 5



 

  

 
 
                                                    
1.  Meeting: Regeneration and Asset Board 

2.  Date: 11 July 2007 

3.  Title: York Consulting Case Study Report on 
Rotherham’s Corporate Capital Strategies and  
Asset Management Plans 
All Wards 

4.  Programme Area: Environment and Development Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Summary 
 
This report provides a briefing note for Regeneration and Asset Board 
Members on the York Consulting Case Study Report on Rotherham’s 
Corporate Capital Strategies and Asset Management Plans.  
 
York Consulting’s Report is a good testament to Asset Management at 
Rotherham and a post Beacon endorsement of our strategies, practices and 
procedures.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
Members are requested to note the report conclusions.  
 
 
 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL  

Agenda Item 5Page 6



 

  

7. Proposals and Detail 
 
Local authorities were required to submit their corporate capital strategies and asset 
management plans to the Government Offices in 2001 to inform the first Single 
Capital Pot allocations for 2002/2003. 
 
In 2001 the Department of Transport, Local Government and the Regions (DTLR) 
commissioned York Consulting to carry out a three-year evaluation of the process by 
which asset management plans and corporate capital strategies were developed and 
implemented and their impact on the efficiency and effectiveness with which local 
authorities manage their property and other capital resources. The three years, 2002 
to 2004, were subsequently extended to five years, 2002 to 2006. 
 
There were three elements to the study methodology: case studies of selected local 
authorities, an annual postal questionnaire survey of all local authorities and 
discussions with staff in the nine Government Offices. 
 
York Consulting have produced and published a report each year giving their 
evaluation results. 
 
Rotherham was one of a tranche of twelve authorities selected as part of the final 
round of fieldwork for the evaluation; this case study report will form part of the 
concluding report for the five year project. 
 
The report was written on the basis of meetings held during March 2007 by York 
Consulting with elected Members and a wide range of officers from across the 
authority. York Consulting also reviewed the following documents: 
• Corporate plan, 2005-2010 
• Capital and Asset management Strategies, Plans and Programmes 2005-2010 
• Corporate Procurement strategy 
• Case Study; Delivering successful construction projects through partnerships 
• Audit Commission Corporate Assessment Report November 2006 
 
York Consulting’s evaluation framework for the development and implementation of 
corporate capital strategies and asset management plans identified 12 good practice 
processes that should be found in all local authorities.  
York Consulting concluded that the Council performs well in relation to all 12 of the 
good practice processes, reflecting the commitment that has been made both by 
elected members and officers in this area of operations.  
The evaluation framework also identified six process outputs and three potential 
process outcomes.  Outputs were defined as the actions and activities stemming 
from the 12 good practice processes, whilst outcomes were the impacts of these 
actions and activities and long term and sustainable changes in organisational and 
cultural structures.  

The report summarised the current position of Rotherham in relation to the 
generation of these process outputs and outcomes. 

Page 7



 

  

The report’s conclusions are: 
 
• The Council has made a significant commitment to this area of work, as 

demonstrated by the processes and systems that have been established.  This 
commitment was recognised with the Council achieving Beacon status for asset 
management. 

 
• It is clear that the corporate approach to asset management has been driven by 

the recognition of the significance of appropriate property assets in delivering 
services to a high standard. 

 
• The success of the approach to capital planning and asset management is 

linked to a significant degree to the emphasis that has been placed on more 
corporate working as a whole in the council, which has been an important 
enabling factor.  This was part of a proactive approach to drive overall 
improvement in the performance of the Council. 

 
• The approach to asset planning and management adopted by the Council 

means that it has both a well-resourced and experienced team of corporate 
officers and access to a broad base of expertise from a number of external 
partner organisations.  This therefore enables a strong ‘mixed economy’ 
approach to asset management. 

 
• The authority is making good use of the data it now holds on its property 

portfolio in supporting decision making.  Of particular significance is the use of 
property data alongside other strategic and socio-demographic data to support 
decisions on the location of new facilities, for example.  This is a more 
sophisticated approach to the use of property data than is often observed, and 
reflects the relative maturity of the approach that has been established.  Further 
enhancements to the data held on properties, to include additional information 
on community assets, not just those owned by the Council, will help to support 
even more ‘rounded’ decision making. 

 
• As a result of the well-embedded approach to capital and asset planning and 

management, the Council is seeing a range of outputs delivered.  Significant 
improvements to the property portfolio have already been achieved, with 
considerable additional improvements in progress or about to commence.  
These improvements are being seen to lead to enhanced access to services 
and improvements to the services themselves. 

 
• The Council has a clear vision of what it is seeking to achieve with its 

properties, combined with an understanding of what needs to be done to 
achieve this vision.  This is leading to major transformational schemes being 
taken forward, reflecting the fundamental changes required in order to achieve 
a property portfolio that is fit-for-purpose to achieve current and emerging 
strategic priorities. 

 
The full report is attached at appendix 1. 
                     
 

Page 8



 

  

8. Finance 
 
The report endorses the investment made and being made in the development and 
implementation of capital and asset management strategies and plans. 
      
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The report does not identify any risks or uncertainties, however, it should be noted 
that the good practice and progress achieved to date will be jeopardised if: 
 
• Investment in the process is reduced  
• The current agreed corporate governance system is not maintained and 

developed  
• Development is not maintained in line with the current agreed capital and asset 

management strategies 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The development and implementation of the capital strategy and asset management 
plans impacts on all the Council’s policies, priorities and inspections and the 
Council’s total performance. 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
York Consulting Case Study No 33 Report 
                                             
Contact Name : Arnold Murray, Asset Manager, Environment & Development  
                           Services.    Ext. 2103 
                            arnold.murray@rotherham.gov.uk 
                         
 

Page 9



 

  

 York Consulting 
 
 
 
 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES 
AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

 
CORPORATE CAPITAL STRATEGIES 
AND ASSET MANAGEMENT PLANS 

 
CASE STUDY No 33 
ROUND 5 REPORT 

 
April 2007 

 
 

 

APPENDIX 1 

Page 10



 

 i 

 
DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITIES 

AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT 
 

CORPORATE CAPITAL STRATEGIES AND 
ASSET MANAGEMENT PLANS 

 
CASE STUDY No 33 
ROUND 5 REPORT 

 
 
 
 

Contents 
 
 
 

  
 

1 INTRODUCTION 

2 LOCAL AUTHORITY PROCESSES 

3 PROCESS OUTPUTS AND OUTCOMES 

4 CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 

Page 11



 

 2 

INTRODUCTION 

Background 
1.1 This case study authority is a metropolitan district council and it is one of a 

tranche of 12 authorities selected as part of the final round of fieldwork for the 
evaluation of the development and implementation of corporate capital 
strategies and asset management plans for the Department for Communities 
and Local Government (DCLG).  The Council achieved Beacon status for 
asset management. 

1.2 The Council has a property portfolio that includes around 750 non-housing 
properties with a total value of £270 million1.  The portfolio included 440 
operational and 310 non-operational properties.  The operational properties 
included 119 schools, 121 buildings within the boundaries of parks, 43 
residential homes and day centres, 26 offices, 25 youth centres and 23 
community centres.  The non-operational properties included 240 retail/office 
units and 40 industrial properties and there were 29 buildings or units of land 
that had been declared surplus. 

1.3 This report has been written on the basis of meetings held during March 2007 
involving the following elected Members and officers of the authority: 
• The Leader of the Council; 
• Strategic Director, Environment and Development Services; 
• Director of Asset Management; 
• Asset Manager; 
• Strategic Property Manager; 
• Valuation Manager; 
• Facilities Services Manager; 
• Facilities Manager; 
• Strategic Finance Manager; 
• School Organisation Planning and Development Team Manager; 
• Manager for Libraries, Museums and Arts. 

1.4 In addition, we have also reviewed the following documents: 
• Corporate Plan, 2005-2010; 
••  CCaappiittaall  aanndd  AAsssseett  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  SSttrraatteeggiieess,,  PPllaannss  aanndd  PPrrooggrraammmmeess  22000055--

22001100;;  
••  CCoorrppoorraattee  PPrrooccuurreemmeenntt  SSttrraatteeggyy;;  

 

                                                 
1 Source: Capital and Asset Management Strategies Plans and Programmes 2005-2010 

Page 12



 

 3 

••  CCaassee  SSttuuddyy::  DDeelliivveerriinngg  ssuucccceessssffuull  ccoonnssttrruuccttiioonn  pprroojjeeccttss  tthhrroouugghh  
ppaarrttnneerrsshhiippss;;  

••  AAuuddiitt  CCoommmmiissssiioonn  CCoorrppoorraattee  AAsssseessssmmeenntt  RReeppoorrtt  NNoovveemmbbeerr  22000066..  
1.5 We are grateful for the contributions to the case study process made by all 

those consulted. 

Structure of the Report 
1.6 In the following sections of this report we: 

• discuss good practice in capital and asset planning in terms of Local 
Authority Processes (Section 2); 

••  hhiigghhlliigghhtt  tthhee  PPrroocceessss  OOuuttppuuttss  aanndd  OOuuttccoommeess  ggeenneerraatteedd  ttoo  ddaattee  bbyy  tthhee  
aauutthhoorriittyy  ((SSeeccttiioonn  33));;  

••  oouuttlliinnee  tthhee  CCoonncclluussiioonnss  aanndd  RReeccoommmmeennddaattiioonnss  ooff  tthhee  rreeppoorrtt  ((SSeeccttiioonn  44))..  
 

Page 13



 

 4 

2 Local Authority Processes 

Introduction 
2.1 The evaluation framework for the development and implementation of 

corporate capital strategies and asset management plans identifies 12 good 
practice processes that should be found in all local authorities.  In this Section, 
we review the position of this case study authority in relation to the 12 
processes. 

Corporate Management 
Process No. 1: ‘Local authorities develop new management arrangements in 
order to respond to the corporate capital strategy and asset management 
planning initiative.’ 

2.2 A major focus of the local authorities in the initial stages of the development of 
their corporate capital strategies and asset management plans was the 
development and implementation of management arrangements in order to 
respond to the new policy initiative. 

2.3 The Council has established a Capital Strategy and Asset Review Team 
comprising corporate officers.  This team is responsible for considering and 
monitoring the authority’s capital and asset management strategies, plans and 
programmes and for recommending the actions that are taken forward.  The 
Capital Strategy and Asset Review Team reports to the Corporate 
Management Team which is responsible for recommending capital and asset 
management strategies, plans and programmes to elected members.  
Operational officers in the Corporate Finance and Asset Management teams 
are responsible for the development and day-to-day management of the 
capital and asset management strategies.  The establishment of the Capital 
Strategy and Asset Review Team was described as having created a 
corporate arena for decisions regarding the capital programme and property 
that was not there previously.  The operation of this team was described 
during case study consultations as mirroring the way in which the Council 
operates as a whole and is built on the need to ensure that action is achieved. 

2.4 The evaluation framework identifies six good practice criteria in relation to the 
management arrangements established by authorities to drive forward a more 
corporate and strategic approach to the capital programme and the use of 
property assets.  We assess below the performance of this case study 
authority against these six criteria. 

 
‘There are clear and explicit links between corporate objectives and 
priorities and those of both the capital programme and asset 
management.’ 

Page 14



 

 5 

2.5 The Capital and Asset Management Strategies, Plans and Programmes form 
part of a suite of cross-cutting plans, which also include the Regeneration 
Plan, Local Development Framework, Medium Term Financial Strategy and 
the Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy and are linked into the Council’s 
Corporate Plan and Service Plans.   

2.6 The Corporate Plan is central to the authority’s planning framework and 
incorporates the vision for the Borough outlined in the Community Strategy.  
The Capital and Asset Management strategy then incorporates this vision and 
the five priority themes and two cross cutting themes (sustainable 
development and fairness).  Within the Capital and Asset Management 
Strategy, it states  
“the Council is operating and continually developing a high profile 
corporate governance system linking the vision, themes, service 
priorities and management of finance and all assets as corporate 
resources to ensure that all assets are maximised to transform the vision 
into reality.” 

2.7 The effectiveness with which the authority links its corporate objectives with 
the other elements in the planning framework was identified in the Audit 
Commission’s Corporate Assessment report, which stated that “the strategic 
and cross-cutting themes in the community strategy form a solid framework 
not only for the Council’s Corporate Plan, but also for all the supporting plans 
and policy documents”. 

2.8 During the consultations for this case study, reference was made on a number 
of occasions to the importance of actions relating to capital investment or 
developments of the property portfolio being explicitly linked to the delivery of 
the themes set out in the Corporate Plan, which were described as a ‘Golden 
Thread’ running through all activities. 

2.9 We would therefore conclude that the Council meets this criterion.  
 

‘There is a committed involvement in the process of all key service areas 
in the authority represented by officers at an appropriately senior level.’ 

2.10 he Capital Strategy and Asset Review Team provides a forum to involve key 
service departments in the process.  This is the formal group that is 
responsible for considering the capital and asset management strategies that 
the authority takes forward.   The involvement of all key service areas and the 
seniority of the officers in this group mean that it is able to take decisions that 
are then approved by elected members. 

 
 
 

Page 15



 

 6 

2.11 The Council therefore meets this criterion. 
 

‘There is a clear distinction between strategic thinking and decision-
making and operational issues’ 

2.12 Without this distinction, capital planning and asset management will generally 
lack direction and there can often be a focus on detailed issues to the 
exclusion of the ‘bigger picture’. 

2.13 This distinction has been achieved through the structures that have been 
established.  The Capital Strategy and Asset Review Team of Corporate 
Officers provides the strategic lead and forum for decision-making, which is 
then supported by the Corporate Finance and Asset Management team which 
includes operational officers with responsibility for developing and managing 
the specific plans and strategies, together with the Asset Management 
Service, which supports the corporate Asset Management Team and the 
Service Asset Teams. 

2.14 Therefore, the Council therefore meets this criterion.  
 
‘There are key officer drivers, including a Director to champion a 
corporate and strategic approach to capital and asset planning and a 
Corporate Property Officer to manage the implementation of the agreed 
capital strategy and asset plan.’ 

2.15 These officers need to champion a more corporate and strategic approach to 
capital expenditure and the use of assets throughout the authority, take a 
strategic view of the capital programme and asset management, and manage 
the implementation of the agreed corporate capital strategy and asset plan. 

2.16 The consultations undertaken during the case study visit demonstrated that 
the authority has an effective champion in the Strategic Director Environment 
and Development Services who was instrumental in establishing the current 
approach to asset management, in particular through an initial review of the 
authority’s assets in around 2002, with an accommodation review leading to 
the development of the authority’s accommodation strategy.  A critical part of 
this championing role has been in getting elected members to sign up the 
introduction of a hub and spoke model of offices, to replace the 11 offices that 
are currently spread across the main town centre of the borough. 

Page 16



 

 7 

2.17 The Corporate Property Officer role is undertaken by the Director of Asset 
Management, who heads the Asset Management Service and is therefore 
responsible for operating units responsible for asset management, corporate 
property management, design consultancy, facilities management and 
services, strategic property, corporate transport and corporate emergency and 
safety.  This therefore provides a clear responsibility for managing and 
coordinating activity to deliver the authority’s capital and asset strategies. 

2.18 We therefore conclude that the Council meets this criterion. 
 
‘There are clear reporting lines to a strong corporate centre, which 
provides a clear lead for the process and ensures that decisions taken are 
then implemented.’ 

2..19 No specific management arrangements in relation to corporate capital 
planning and asset management, however appropriate, are likely to be 
successful in the absence of a strong corporate centre providing a clear lead 
for the process and ensuring that the decisions taken are then implemented.  
Indeed, the key factors that explain the differential progress of local authorities 
up the capital and asset planning learning curve are more to do with corporate 
working/culture, the commitment of senior officers and elected members, and 
the quality of leadership across the authority, rather than specific financial and 
property issues. 

2.20 The position of the Director of Asset Management within the structure of the 
authority provides a direct reporting line to the Strategic Director Environment 
and Development Services, also therefore providing a short line of 
communication to the Corporate Management Team.  What is also clear is 
that the authority has made significant progress in recent years in 
strengthening its corporate centre.   

2.21 The Council has improved from being designated ‘weak’ in the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment in 2003 to achieving three star 
status in a two-year period, driven by service improvements.  The Corporate 
Assessment which was carried out in late 2006 reported similar improvements 
in corporate processes “driven by strong managerial and political leadership” 
and “high quality staff in key positions”. 

2.22 The significant strengthening of corporate working has therefore provided an 
appropriate context within which the corporate approach to capital and asset 
planning and management can take place, whilst the structures that have 
been established place the Asset Management Service in an appropriate 
position within the authority to capitalise on the corporate working in taking 
activities forward. 

 

Page 17



 

 8 

2.23 We therefore conclude that the Council meets this good practice criterion. 
 

‘There is an integration of the development and implementation of the 
capital strategy and asset plan.’ 

2.24 The capital strategy and asset management strategy now form an integrated 
document that is one of the cross-cutting plans that support the 
implementation of the Corporate Plan.  The Capital and Asset Management 
Strategies are set out for the five-year period covering the Council’s current 
Corporate Plan. 

2.25 The integration of the Capital Strategy and Asset Management plan in this 
way was introduced following the removal of the requirement to submit the 
documents to Government Office for assessment and therefore the 
requirement for the documents to be presented in a particular format. 

2.26 The Capital Strategy: 
• relates capital investment to the Corporate Plan and Medium Term 

Financial Strategy; 
••  ccoovveerrss  aallll  aassppeeccttss  ooff  ccaappiittaall  eexxppeennddiittuurree  wwiitthhiinn  tthhee  ccoouunncciill;;  
••  eexxtteennddss  ttoo  aallll  aarreeaass  wwhheerree  tthhee  ccoouunncciill  iiss  aabbllee  ttoo  aappppllyy  ssiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  

iinnfflluueennccee  oonn  ootthheerr  ppllaayyeerrss  tthhrroouugghh  tthhee  ddeeppllooyymmeenntt  ooff  rreessoouurrcceess;;  
••  pprroovviiddeess  tthhee  ppoolliiccyy  ffrraammeewwoorrkk  ffoorr  tthhee  CCaappiittaall  IInnvveessttmmeenntt  PPllaann  aanndd  AAsssseett  

MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  PPllaann;;  
••  iinnffoorrmmss  rreevveennuuee  bbuuddggeettss;;  
••  eennssuurreess  aasssseettss  aarree  ffuullllyy  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  iinn  tthhee  ccoouunncciill’’ss  ppllaannss..  

2.27 The aim of the Capital Strategy is “to maximise the all resources to transform 
the Vision into Reality by: 

• formulating, managing, monitoring and evaluating capital investment in 
accordance with the Capital and Asset Management Procedures 2006; 

••  mmaannaaggiinngg  aallll  pprroojjeeccttss  iinn  aaccccoorrddaannccee  wwiitthh  tthhee  PPrroojjeeccttss  PPrroocceedduurraall  
GGuuiiddaannccee  22000066;;  

••  aaccttiivveellyy  eemmbbrraacciinngg  aallll  ffoorrmmss  ooff  ppaarrttnneerrsshhiipp  aanndd  pprrooccuurreemmeenntt;;  
••  aaccttiivveellyy  pprroommoottiinngg  ccrroossss--ccuuttttiinngg  aaccttiivviittyy  aanndd  pprroojjeeccttss””..  

 
 
 

Page 18



 

 9 

2.28 The aims of the Asset Management Strategy are to ensure that: 
• all assets are maximised to transform the Vision into Reality; 
••  aallll  aasssseettss  aarree  mmaannaaggeedd  aass  ccoorrppoorraattee  rreessoouurrcceess;;  
••  aasssseettss  aarree  uusseedd  eeffffiicciieennttllyy  aanndd  eeffffeeccttiivveellyy  aanndd  iinn  aa  ssuussttaaiinnaabbllee  mmaannnneerr;;  
••  tthhee  ooppppoorrttuunniittyy  ccoosstt  ooff  aasssseettss  iiss  mmiinniimmiisseedd  aanndd  tthhee  vvaalluuee  ooff  ccoouunncciill  aasssseettss  

iiss  pprrootteecctteedd;;  
••  eexxppeennddiittuurree  oonn  aasssseettss  mmaaxxiimmiisseess  vvaalluuee  ffoorr  mmoonneeyy;;  
••  tthhee  uussee  ooff  aasssseettss  ccoonnttrriibbuutteess  ttoo  sseerrvviiccee  iimmpprroovveemmeenntt;;  
••  iinnnnoovvaattiivvee  ssoolluuttiioonnss  aarree  ddeevveellooppeedd  ttoo  mmeeeett  sseerrvviiccee  nneeeeddss;;  
••  aann  eexxpplliicciitt,,  ccoooorrddiinnaatteedd  aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  aasssseett  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  iiss  iimmpplleemmeenntteedd  

aaccrroossss  tthhee  aauutthhoorriittyy,,  rreefflleeccttiinngg  sseerrvviiccee  nneeeeddss  aass  ddeetteerrmmiinneedd  bbyy  
ccoonnssuullttaattiioonn  wwiitthh  ssttaakkeehhoollddeerrss;;  

••  tthhee  rreettuurrnn  oonn  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  aanndd  ssuurrpplluuss  aasssseettss  iiss  mmaaxxiimmiisseedd  iinn  aann  
aapppprroopprriiaattee  mmaannnneerr  ttoo  mmeeeett  ffiinnaanncciiaall  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss..  

2.29 These aims are to be achieved by: 
• managing, monitoring and evaluating assets in accordance with the 

Capital and Asset Management Procedures 2006; 
••  mmaannaaggiinngg  aallll  pprroojjeeccttss  iinn  aaccccoorrddaannccee  wwiitthh  tthhee  PPrroojjeeccttss  PPrroocceedduurraall  

GGuuiiddaannccee  22000066;;  
••  iimmpplleemmeennttiinngg  ccoorrppoorraattee  llaannddlloorrdd  tteennaanntt  sseerrvviiccee  lleevveell  ppaarrttnneerrsshhiippss  ffoorr  aallll  

llaanndd  aanndd  pprrooppeerrttyy  aasssseettss  eexxcceepptt  ccoouunncciill  ddwweelllliinnggss;;  
••  ccoonnssoolliiddaattiinngg  aallll  llaanndd  aanndd  pprrooppeerrttyy  aasssseett  bbuuddggeettss..  

2.30 Overall, the intention is that the authority has a smaller, more efficient and 
sustainable asset portfolio by disposing of surplus and obsolete assets, whilst 
new assets will only be acquired where necessary to support specific service 
delivery plans. 

2.31 The capital and asset management strategy therefore provides a set of key 
principles that underpin the approach to be adopted by the authority in utilising 
capital resources and properties in the achievement of the council’s Vision and 
in enabling service delivery and, perhaps most significantly, service 
improvements. 

 
 

Page 19



 

 10 

2.32 We would therefore conclude that the authority meets this criterion. 

2.33 In summary, the management arrangements that have been put in place by 
the Council meet all the good practice criteria set out in the evaluation 
framework.  This is a reflection of the council’s commitment to developing a 
robust approach to capital and asset management and the recognition of the 
important benefits that can be generated through this approach. 

Process No. 2: ‘Local authorities restructure their governance arrangements 
so that they are better able to focus on strategic property issues and hence 
improve their decision-making capability.’ 
2.34 Most authorities have now introduced a Cabinet system, including elected 

members with formal responsibility for the capital programme and property 
and asset management.  This should enhance the profile of these issues and 
ensure that there is a fully transparent reporting structure from officers to 
elected members.  The Cabinet system should also establish a stronger basis 
for the development of corporate working and decision-making in authorities, 
supporting the achievement of the objectives of the capital strategy and asset 
management initiative.  On a wider scale, the introduction of the overview and 
scrutiny functions of authorities should mean that property issues receive 
more detailed attention than previously. 

2.35 The governance arrangements that have been put in place are regarded by 
the authority as a ‘crucial component’ of the success of its approach.  The 
council originally established a Property Board, which was responsible for 
considering significant property-related issues in the borough.  However, this 
group did not have clear terms of reference or powers. 

2.36 Approximately four years ago, the Property Board was re-constituted as the 
Regeneration and Assets Board (R&AB).  This is chaired by the Cabinet 
Member for Economic Development and Regeneration Services, and includes 
the Cabinet Members responsible for services with large property portfolios 
and Scrutiny, therefore comprising approximately half of the Cabinet.  The 
R&AB was specifically established to give asset management sufficient and 
in-depth attention from elected members. 

2.37 The R&AB provides a forum within which to discuss issues that cut across 
service and policy areas, but is also a decision-making forum in its own right, 
reflecting the delegated powers of portfolio holders, and makes 
recommendations to Cabinet on the acquisition, use and disposal of property 
assets.  The R&AB is responsible for steering major capital projects, acting as 
the client on behalf of Cabinet.  The R&AB therefore provides a mechanism 
that involves key elected members in all aspects of the development and 
delivery of the capital programme, and in particular in resolving contentious 
issues and enabling quicker decision-making than was the case previously. 

Page 20



 

 11 

2.38 The involvement of elected members is not limited to the members of the 
R&AB.  Where property disposals or new schemes are being considered, 
ward members are invited to the R&AB, to involve them as ‘champions’ of the 
communities they represent.  However, it is recognised that since its 
establishment, the R&AB has represented a shift of power away from ward 
members and there is now a recognised need to strengthen ward member 
involvement further in the context of the Local Government White Paper and 
increasing focus on the transfer of assets to communities. 

2.39 There is also evidence of increasing ward member and Scrutiny interest in 
capital and asset management issues, which is said to be a reflection of the 
increasing recognition of the impact of major capital schemes, especially those 
delivered through PFI and prudential borrowing, on revenue resources. 

2.40 We would regard the operation of the Regeneration and Assets Board as an 
example of good practice in the involvement of elected members in providing 
governance arrangements that enable an appropriate focus on strategic 
property issues. 

Capacity Building 
Process No. 3: ‘Local authorities develop an effective organisation of 
their property management services as the basis for implementing a 
more corporate and strategic approach to asset management.’ 

2.41 The evidence from local authorities suggests that an approach to operational 
property management that includes a strong corporate component allied to the 
day-to-day management of properties used to deliver services by individual 
departments provides the most robust basis for implementing a corporate and 
strategic approach to the use of assets. 

2.42 We assess the property management arrangements of local authorities in 
terms of the following two criteria: 
• the effectiveness of the organisation of property management, either 

through a centralised corporate team or through effective corporate 
working between teams; 

••  tthhee  aapppprroopprriiaatteenneessss  ooff  tthhee  lleevveell  ooff  rreessoouurrcciinngg  ffoorr  pprrooppeerrttyy  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  
((iinncclluuddiinngg  tthhee  rreeccrruuiittmmeenntt  aanndd  ttrraaiinniinngg  ooff  ssttaaffff  aanndd  tthhee  aavvaaiillaabbiilliittyy  ooff  
ffuunnddiinngg  ffoorr  tthhee  ppuurrcchhaassee  ooff  IITT  aanndd  ootthheerr  eeqquuiippmmeenntt))..  

Page 21



 

 12 

2.43 The Asset Management Service, which is one of five departments in the 
Environment and Development Directorate, provides a strong corporate team 
with responsibility for property management.  It has responsibility for delivering 
the corporate asset management planning and delivery functions, and in 
supporting service asset management teams who are responsible for linking 
corporate asset management to service deliverers and users. 

2.44 The Asset Management Service has around 120 staff, covering the following 
functions: 
• capital and asset planning and delivery; 
••  ssttrraatteeggiicc  pprrooppeerrttyy  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt,,  ffooccuussiinngg  oonn  eennssuurriinngg  aapppprroopprriiaattee  uussee  ooff  

ffiitt--ffoorr--ppuurrppoossee  pprrooppeerrttiieess;;  
••  ffaacciilliittiieess  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  aanndd  sseerrvviicceess;;  
••  pprroojjeeccttss  aanndd  ppaarrttnneerrsshhiipp  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt;;  
••  qquuaannttiittyy  ssuurrvveeyyiinngg;;  
••  ddeessiiggnn  ccoonnssuullttaannccyy,,  iinncclluuddiinngg  aarrcchhiitteeccttuurraall  sseerrvviicceess,,  bbuuiillddiinngg  ssuurrvveeyyiinngg  

aanndd  bbuuiillddiinngg  sseerrvviicceess..  
2.45 In addition there are teams within the department responsible for the 

management of the authority’s corporate transport and for Emergency 
Planning and safety. 

2.46 The authority therefore has a strong base of staff within the central Asset 
Management service, providing capacity to carry out the full range of asset 
planning and management functions.  As part of a mixed economy approach, 
partnering arrangements are also in place with a number of private sector 
organisations, including five construction consultancies and ten construction 
contractors. 

2.47 A partnering charter has been developed, which has the following mission: 
“To gain an excellent reputation for providing an innovative building 
construction service, delivering quality projects safely, on time and to budget”. 

2.48 The partnering approach provides the authority with considerable additional 
capacity to deliver asset management services, building on the internal 
expertise and capacity of the Asset Management Service. 

2.49 Within the facilities management team, there are designated Building 
Managers, who chair the service asset management teams, ensuring that 
there is effective coordination between the corporate and service-level 
activities. 

Page 22



 

 13 

2.50 We would therefore conclude that the approach to operational property 
management provides an effective combination of central functions and 
service department activity, and the level of resources both within the Asset 
Management Service and available through the partnerships established are 
appropriate to deliver the support necessary. 

Process No. 4: ‘Local authorities introduce a formal corporate approach to 
project management, such as PRINCE 2 (Projects in Controlled Environments), 
supported by appropriate processes and staffing and other resources, in order 
to support larger and more complex capital programmes.  This should include 
a systematic approach to undertaking post-implementation reviews.’ 
2.51 Many authorities have experienced a significant rise in the size and complexity 

of their capital programmes over the past few years, with the result that project 
management capacity and capability has become an important issue in a 
number of councils.  Where this has been identified as an issue, authorities 
have responded in one or all of four broad ways: 
• Corporate Project Management Systems – the introduction of a formal 

corporate approach to project management, generally based on the 
PRINCE 2 gateway process; 

••  DDeevveellooppiinngg  IInntteerrnnaall  CCaappaacciittyy  ––  iinncclluuddiinngg  tthhee  eessttaabblliisshhmmeenntt  ooff  ssppeecciiaalliisstt  
tteeaammss,,  ootthheerr  iinnccrreeaasseess  iinn  ccaappaacciittyy  aanndd  pprroojjeecctt  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ttrraaiinniinngg;;  

••  OOtthheerr  IInntteerrnnaall  CChhaannggeess  --  iinncclluuddiinngg  tthhee  ccllaarriiffiiccaattiioonn  ooff  rroolleess  aanndd  
rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittiieess  iinn  rreellaattiioonn  ttoo  pprroojjeecctt  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt,,  tthhee  ppiilloottiinngg  ooff  nneeww  
pprroojjeecctt  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  mmeetthhooddoollooggiieess,,  aanndd  tthhee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  ooff  nneeww  pprroojjeecctt  
mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  pprroottooccoollss  aanndd  gguuiiddeelliinneess;;  

••  PPaarrttnneerrsshhiipp  DDeevveellooppmmeenntt  ––  iinncclluuddiinngg  tthhee  eessttaabblliisshhmmeenntt  ooff  lloonngg  tteerrmm  
ppaarrttnneerrsshhiipp  aaggrreeeemmeennttss  wwiitthh  ffiirrmmss  ooff  aarrcchhiitteeccttss,,  eennggiinneeeerrss,,  pprroojjeecctt  
mmaannaaggeerrss  aanndd  ffaacciilliittiieess  mmaannaaggeerrss..  

2.52 We assess the position of local authorities in relation to project planning and 
management in terms of the following three criteria: 
• The introduction of a formal corporate approach to project management; 
••  TThhee  eessttaabblliisshhmmeenntt  ooff  aann  aapppprroopprriiaattee  ccoorrppoorraattee  pprroocceessss  ttoo  ssuuppppoorrtt  tthhee  

iimmpplleemmeennttaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  pprroojjeecctt  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ssyysstteemm;;  
••  TThhee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  ooff  aapppprroopprriiaattee  ssttaaffffiinngg  aanndd  ootthheerr  rreessoouurrcceess,,  eeiitthheerr  

iinntteerrnnaallllyy  oorr  eexxtteerrnnaallllyy  tthhrroouugghh  ppaarrttnneerrsshhiipp  wwoorrkkiinngg,,  iinn  oorrddeerr  ttoo  iimmpplleemmeenntt  
tthhee  pprroojjeecctt  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  ssyysstteemm..  

Page 23



 

 14 

2.53 The authority, working with its external project management partner, has 
developed a new Project Procedural Guide, based on good practice from 
across the construction industry, to provide a framework for the management 
of all projects.  The aim of the approach to project management is to avoid the 
establishment of a bureaucratic system whilst providing a model that will meet 
the requirements of any external funding provider.   

2.54 Within the Asset Management Service, the Projects and Partnerships team 
provide project management services to internal clients.  As noted above, the 
authority has established partnering arrangements with a number of private 
sector organisations, which are managed by the Projects and Partnerships 
team.  This therefore provides additional capacity to manage capital projects. 

2.55 For large capital projects, such as the development of six Customer Service 
Centres across the Borough, the Regeneration and Asset Board acts as client 
on behalf of the Cabinet.  All projects have a named project manager, who is 
accountable and responsible for delivery in line with the Project Procedural 
Guide and officer sub-groups are established as appropriate to specific stages 
of project delivery. 

2.56 The authority therefore meets each of the three project management criteria.  
We would regard the authority’s focus on working with its partners to develop 
a non-bureaucratic project management system that is flexible and 
proportionate to projects of differing scale and degrees of complexity is an 
example of good practice. 

Information and Evidence 
Process No. 5: ‘Local authorities gather, store, maintain and update 
information on the size, value, condition, suitability and sufficiency, and other 
relevant details, of their property holdings.’ 
2.57 The collection of property data, the development of corporate property 

databases and investment in associated information technology has been a 
major focus of all local authorities over the past five years.  The key challenge 
for authorities is to make use of this information to drive the more effective 
management of their property assets and hence to improve the efficiency and 
quality of service delivery. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

 15 

2.58 We assess the position of local authorities in relation to property data in terms 
of the following three criteria: 
• effective holding of property information; 
• evidence of an ongoing process of data collection; 
• accessibility of property data, including staff training. 

2.59 The authority has a core asset management database based on the Tribal 
asset management system, which contains: 
• the asset register; 
• condition data; 
• maintenance information; 
• suitability data; 
• lifecycle costs; 
• DDA compliance; 
• performance indicators for each property. 

2.60 The data held in the property database is subject to on-going updates, with 
building managers working closely with service teams and carrying out 
surveys of properties to ensure that the database is able to support effective 
asset management. 

2.61 It is now planned that this database is incorporated with the Council’s 
corporate Geographic Information System and combined with socio-
demographic data regarding the area in which the property is located, to 
support more effective decisions on actions in response to corporate priorities 
and needs.  This combination of property data, socio-demographic data and 
strategic data on plans and programmes was used to support decisions 
regarding the location of six Customer Service Centres in order to maximise 
population coverage, target areas of greatest demand, maximise convenience 
to service users and to ensure reasonable coverage of the borough. 

2.62 Ultimately, it is intended to extend the database to include information on the 
assets owned and operated by external partners, including parish councils, 
voluntary and community groups and other public sector bodies.  This broader 
base of evidence, combining property and other data, is seen as an important 
development in securing a much more ‘rounded’ picture to support service 
delivery and enable more effective inter-organisation planning and action.  To 
achieve this will require additional resources to be available.  It is also 
recognised that drawing together and maintaining data on community facilities 
is likely to be difficult. 

2.63 The authority’s approach to gathering, storing, updating and enabling access 
to its property data meets the three criteria set out above.  We would regard 
the plans to extend the range of data held to include information on community 
facilities, combined with the use of socio-demographic data, as an example of 
good practice.

Page 25



 

 16 

Process No. 6: ‘Local authorities have considered, identified and 
calculated a suite of property performance indicators that is appropriate 
to the local context, and draw on the experience of asset management 
from other organisations in order to improve their own performance.’ 

2.64 The monitoring of a suite of property performance indicators (pPIs) is an 
important mechanism by which local authorities can potentially drive a process 
of continuous improvement in the management of their property assets. 

2.65 We suggest the following four criteria should be considered in identifying an 
appropriate suite of local pPIs: 
• the indicators should help in assessing whether the authority is meeting its 

strategic aims for asset management; 
••  tthhee  ddaattaa  sshhoouulldd  bbee  rreellaattiivveellyy  eeaassyy  ttoo  ccoolllleecctt  aanndd  aasssseessss;;  
••  tthhee  iinnddiiccaattoorrss  sshhoouulldd  bbee  mmeeaanniinnggffuull;;  
••  tthhee  iinnddiiccaattoorrss  sshhoouulldd  bbee  ccaappaabbllee  ooff  bbeeiinngg  uusseedd  ttoo  bbeenncchhmmaarrkk  tthhee  

aauutthhoorriittyy’’ss  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  aaggaaiinnsstt  ootthheerr  llooccaall  aauutthhoorriittiieess  aanndd  ppuubblliicc  bbooddiieess  
aanndd  tthhee  pprriivvaattee  sseeccttoorr..  

2.66 In the recent Corporate Assessment report from the Audit Commission, the 
Council was reported as performing strongly in its approach to performance 
management.  The Audit Commission stated that “improved performance 
management has had a real impact and is a major reason for the Council’s 
recent improvement”. 

2.67 The authority initially adopted the pPIs that were originally set out by ODPM 
and is now collecting data against the COPROP indicators.  The use of the 
COPROP indicators has led to a different approach to the calculation of the 
revenue running costs of properties per square metre.  The change in the 
method of calculation is said to be providing a more accurate indication of 
revenue running costs.   

2.68 The indicators currently in use in Environment and Development Services that 
relate to the performance of the authority’s properties are as follows: 
• CO2 emissions, tonnes per m2; 
••  rreevveennuuee  rruunnnniinngg  ccoossttss  ooff  fflloooorrssppaaccee  ppeerr  mm22;;  
••  eenneerrggyy  ccoonnssuummppttiioonn  iinn  kkWWhh//mm22  ffoorr  ooppeerraattiioonnaall  pprrooppeerrttyy,,  mmaarrkkeettss  aanndd  

ppuubblliicc  ttooiilleettss;;  
••  wwaatteerr  ccoonnssuummppttiioonn  iinn  lliittrreess//mm22    ffoorr  ooppeerraattiioonnaall  pprrooppeerrttyy,,  mmaarrkkeettss  aanndd  ppuubblliicc  

ttooiilleettss;;  

Page 26



 

 17 

••  ppeerrcceennttaaggee  ooff  ggrroossss  fflloooorrssppaaccee  ccllaassssiiffiieedd  aass  iinn  ccoonnddiittiioonn  ccaatteeggoorriieess  AA  aanndd  
BB;;  

••  nnuummbbeerr  ooff  pprrooppeerrttyy  aasssseettss  rreevviieewweedd  aaggaaiinnsstt  aa  cchheecckklliisstt  ooff  3311  ccrriitteerriiaa..  
2.69 Condition data is important in informing the level of expenditure on the 

property portfolio each year and was used to support decisions about the 
schools which were included in the authority’s schools PFI programme.  All 
properties have been audited for suitability, using the basic model developed 
by DfES for use in schools.  This therefore provides a means of comparison of 
the suitability of properties across service departments.  This information is 
held within the corporate property database.   

2.70 The 15 Constructing Excellence indicators are also gathered and monitored in 
operating the construction partnership. 

2.71 Whilst the authority is making use of the COPROP indicators, it was stated 
during the case study consultations that they would like to reach a position 
where the indicators are used more proactively in managing the property 
portfolio.  It was also stated that they regard a key challenge going forward as 
developing and using local pPIs that provide evidence of the way in which 
property is supporting service delivery.  However, there remains some 
question about whether this should simply be based on the use of service use 
indicators or feedback from service users, rather than the development of 
additional specific indicators. 

2.72 During the case study consultations, some concerns were raised about the 
usefulness of benchmarking property performance indicators against other 
organisations, due to the difficulties in ensuring that the organisations involved 
are using consistent approaches to data collection to provide a valid means of 
comparison.  However, the authority does find value in monitoring trends in its 
own performance indicators over time. 

2.73 The authority’s approach to gathering and using property performance 
indicators therefore meets most of the four good practice criteria set out 
above.  Once the use of the COPROP indicators is embedded, it may be 
beneficial to consider greater use of comparisons with other similar authorities 
in order to demonstrate internally and externally that the critical issues in 
relation to the property portfolio are being addressed and that performance is 
in line with the best. 

2.74 The authority is in the process of considering indicators that will provide the 
ability to assess the way in which properties support service delivery.  This 
therefore goes beyond simply looking at property performance data in the 
abstract and reflects the aim in the Asset Management Plan that ‘the use of 
assets contributes to the process of service improvement’ and that this should 
therefore be reflected in the indicators of performance. 

Page 27



 

 18 

Process No. 7: ‘Local authorities develop processes through which to consult 
with partners/stakeholders, service users, the general public and staff 
regarding the capital programme and property-related issues.’ 
2.75 Consultation lies at the heart of the community leadership role of local 

authorities and most councils are developing a range of mechanisms to 
consult with partners, stakeholders, the general public, service users, staff and 
other groups.  The available evidence suggests that many authorities are still 
at an early stage in deciding how to integrate consultation on capital planning 
and asset management with their wider processes. 

2.76 As with many local authorities, consultation in relation to property-related 
issues tends to be undertaken in the context of specific schemes or proposals, 
rather than to inform the capital programme more generally.  For example, the 
authority is currently planning a reorganisation of its town centre 
accommodation from 11 separate buildings to create a new civic centre, 
alongside the wider remodelling of the town centre as part of the delivery of a 
new Town Centre Masterplan.  This has been the subject of significant 
consultation and is now at the point of agreement for the delivery of the new 
civic accommodation scheme. 

2.77 There is evidence of the authority using consultation with service users to 
assess the results of changes that have been to operational properties.  For 
example, following recent improvements to the authority’s libraries, feedback 
from users indicates that all libraries are now accessible and compliant with 
the Disability Discrimination Act, whilst the satisfaction ratings of visitors to the 
refurbished museum have increased from the lower quartile to upper quartile. 

 2.78 Consultation was identified as an area of strength in the authority’s overall 
operations in the recent Corporate Assessment by the Audit Commission.  
The authority’s Vision for the next 10-20 years, which underpins the Corporate 
Plan and therefore flows through into the way in which it is seeking to make 
use of its property assets, was informed by a programme of consultations with 
local residents that explored their perceptions of the borough, their priorities 
for improvement and future desires. 

2.79 In addition to consultations with local residents, there are specific 
arrangements in place where properties are declared surplus to consult with 
ward members, the Area Assembly and the Primary Care Trust about potential 
alternative uses of the property.  This process is regarded as important in 
ensuring that all possible options are considered before reaching a final 
decision.  There are also reciprocal arrangements with the Primary Care Trust 
in relation to their properties when they become surplus. 

 
 
 

Page 28



 

 19 

Strategic Planning 
 

Process No. 8: ‘Local authorities develop a medium/long term Property 
Strategy and integrate its implementation with their wider medium term 
planning at both corporate and service levels.’ 
2.80 Property, finance, staff and information technology are all elements of the 

overall resources that local authorities need to employ in an effective and 
efficient way in order to achieve their aims and objectives.  Consequently, 
planning for the use of these resources over the medium term needs to take 
place in an integrated way, so a Property Strategy has to be part of an overall 
resources plan or be closely linked to, and consistent with, the medium term 
financial strategy, the workforce development plan and the information 
technology strategy. 

2.81 The evidence suggests that, to the extent that there is one indicator that 
separates ‘the best from the rest’ in relation to asset management in Local 
Government, it is whether the authority has a medium/long term Property 
Strategy in place. 

2.82 The authority’s Asset Management Strategy and Corporate Asset 
Management Plan form elements within the Capital and Asset Management 
Strategies, Plans and Programmes for the period covered by the current 
Corporate Plan.  These documents sit alongside the Medium-term Financial 
Strategy and other cross-cutting plans. 

The Asset Management Strategy defines the approach to asset management 
planning as ‘optimising the utilisation of assets in terms of service benefits and 
financial return’ and then describes the nine aims that the authority seeks to 
achieve through its Asset Management Strategy, as follows: 
• all assets are maximised to turn the vision into reality; 
••  aallll  aasssseettss  aarree  mmaannaaggeedd  aass  ccoorrppoorraattee  rreessoouurrcceess;;  
••  aasssseettss  aarree  uusseedd  eeffffiicciieennttllyy  aanndd  eeffffeeccttiivveellyy  aanndd  iinn  aa  ssuussttaaiinnaabbllee  mmaannnneerr;;  
••  tthhee  ooppppoorrttuunniittyy  ccoosstt  ooff  aasssseettss  iiss  mmiinniimmiisseedd  aanndd  tthhee  vvaalluuee  ooff  CCoouunncciill  aasssseettss  

pprrootteecctteedd;;  
••  eexxppeennddiittuurree  oonn  aasssseettss  mmaaxxiimmiisseess  vvaalluuee  ffoorr  mmoonneeyy;;  
••  tthhee  uussee  ooff  aasssseettss  ccoonnttrriibbuutteess  ttoo  sseerrvviiccee  iimmpprroovveemmeenntt;;  
••  iinnnnoovvaattiivvee  ssoolluuttiioonnss  aarree  ddeevveellooppeedd  ttoo  mmeeeett  sseerrvviiccee  nneeeeddss;;  

Page 29



 

 20 

••  aann  eexxpplliicciitt,,  ccoooorrddiinnaatteedd  aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  aasssseett  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  iiss  iimmpplleemmeenntteedd  
aaccrroossss  tthhee  aauutthhoorriittyy,,  rreefflleeccttiinngg  sseerrvviiccee  nneeeeddss  aass  ddeetteerrmmiinneedd  bbyy  
ccoonnssuullttaattiioonn  wwiitthh  ssttaakkeehhoollddeerrss;;  

••  tthhee  rreettuurrnn  oonn  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  aanndd  ssuurrpplluuss  aasssseettss  iiss  mmaaxxiimmiisseedd  iinn  aann  
aapppprroopprriiaattee  mmaannnneerr  ttoo  mmeeeett  ffiinnaanncciiaall  rreeqquuiirreemmeennttss..  

2.84 The overall aim set out in the Asset Management Strategy is to have a 
‘smaller, more efficient and sustainable asset portfolio by disposing of surplus 
and obsolete assets; assets are only being acquired as necessary to support 
specific service delivery plans’. 

2.85 The Corporate Asset Management plan section is set out in relation to the 
seven main themes of the authority’s activities (learning, achieving, alive, safe, 
proud, sustainable development and fairness).  The assets relating to each 
theme are identified and then brief information is provided about: 
• the major issues relating to the assets within each theme; 
••  oouuttlliinnee  pprrooppoossaallss  ttoo  rreessppoonndd  ttoo  tthhee  iiddeennttiiffiieedd  iissssuueess;;  
••  ffuunnddiinngg  ssoouurrcceess  ttoo  ttaakkee  ffoorrwwaarrdd  tthheessee  pprrooppoossaallss;;  
••  tthhee  aannttiicciippaatteedd  oouuttppuuttss  aanndd  oouuttccoommeess  ffrroomm  tthhee  ddeelliivveerryy  ooff  tthhee  pprrooppoossaallss..  

2.86 In some areas of the Corporate Asset Management Plan, reference is made to 
other more detailed strategies and plans.  For example, in relation to corporate 
accommodation, the Office Accommodation Strategy and action plan provide 
the detail regarding the actions being taken forward to address the problem of 
a large number of offices in the town centre all in need of considerable 
investment.  All schools have five-year and 15-year asset management plans. 

2.87 The Strategies, Plans and Programmes document provides a clear indication 
of what the authority is seeking to achieve with its property portfolio and the 
actions that are to be undertaken in relation to the properties in each service 
area and in use to support the delivery of the Council’s key themes.  There is 
a clear statement of the importance of property in supporting service delivery.  
The one area in which the Asset Management Strategy could perhaps be 
developed further is in considering the property implications of new forms of 
service provision. 

2.88 Therefore, the authority has integrated asset management with its wider 
medium-term planning. 

 
 
 

Page 30



 

 21 

Process No. 9: ‘Local authorities develop a clear strategic approach to 
the disposal of surplus land and property, the utilisation of space by 
staff (including flexible working), co-location with partners and 
stakeholders, and procurement in line with Egan principles.’ 

2.89 We have identified four key indicators of whether local authorities have a clear 
strategic approach to the implementation of the capital programme and asset 
management: 
• a written procurement strategy in line with ‘Egan’ principles; 
••  aa  cclleeaarr  ssttrraatteeggiicc  aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  tthhee  ddiissppoossaall  ooff  ssuurrpplluuss  llaanndd  aanndd  pprrooppeerrttyy;;  
••  aa  cclleeaarr  ssttrraatteeggiicc  aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  tthhee  uuttiilliissaattiioonn  ooff  ssppaaccee  aanndd  fflleexxiibbllee  wwoorrkkiinngg;;  
••  aa  cclleeaarr  ssttrraatteeggiicc  aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  ccoo--llooccaattiioonn  wwiitthh  ppaarrttnneerrss  aanndd  ssttaakkeehhoollddeerrss..  

 

2.90 The authority is a Beacon in relation to the Delivery of Quality Services 
through Procurement.  As such, it has a comprehensive Corporate 
Procurement Strategy which was introduced in 2006, with the performance of 
the Procurement Strategy overseen by the Council’s Procurement Panel.  The 
Procurement Strategy includes the Council’s Procurement Vision, as follows: 
“The Council will procure goods, services and works by the most economic, 
efficient, effective and sustainable means to ensure that the needs and 
aspirations of the community are furthered, within a clear framework of 
accountability and responsibility.  In doing so, the Council will strive to become 
best in class by adopting world-class procurement practices and techniques”. 

2.91 The Corporate Procurement Strategy follows the four main themes of the 
National Procurement Strategy for Local Government. 

2.92 The approach to procurement of construction-related services developed 
following a Best Value Review of Architects which identified the need to 
strengthen a number of areas of the construction process.  In particular, there 
was a recognition of the need to capitalise more on partnerships with private 
sector organisations in all the technical elements of building consultancy.  This 
led to the appointment of long-term partners for project management, quantity 
surveying, architecture, building surveying and M&E Engineering Services, 
initially for a period of three years.  Following this, the first Procurement 
Strategy for Construction Works was introduced in October 2002, with the 
decision that strategic contractor partners should be appointed to deal with 
virtually all construction work commissioned by the Building Consultancy. 

Page 31



 

 22 

2.93 Where a property is declared surplus, it is transferred into a central property 
bank and the corporate Asset Management Service takes on responsibility for 
revenue costs associated with the property.  This should, therefore, provide an 
incentive to service departments to release surplus properties, rather than 
seek to retain them.  It is not possible for surplus properties to be transferred 
direct within a service directorate.  Once a property has been transferred to 
the property bank, consultation takes place within the council regarding the 
potential options.  As noted above in relation to consultation, contact would 
also be made at this stage with ward councillors, Area Assemblies and the 
Primary Care Trust regarding alternative uses.  This process therefore 
provides an opportunity to consider all options including disposal, alternative 
use by the council and co-location with external organisations in supporting 
the final decision.  The Regeneration and Assets Board has overall 
responsibility for decisions relating to disposals. 

2.94 The Council’s approach to space occupation and flexible working is a 
development of the ‘Workstyle’ approach developed by BT, which covers all 
the elements of flexible working, including human resources, information 
technology, finance and property.  The Council is involved in a 12-year joint 
venture with BT which was established in 2003 and provides a contact centre 
and Customer Service Centres, human resources and payroll services, ICT, 
Revenues and Benefits and procurement.  Flexible working has been piloted 
in Revenues and Benefits services and is integral to the new office 
accommodation which assumes full adoption of flexible working and will 
therefore be 60% smaller than the current accommodation across 11 separate 
offices. 

2.95 The approach to co-location with partners and stakeholders in the past was 
described as ‘irregular’.  This included transferring properties to community 
groups and other organisations at no cost and with no clear agreements.  In 
this context, the Council took the decision three years ago that all future co-
location agreements would be on the basis of market rents for the costs of the 
accommodation occupied by external partners.  Service departments have the 
opportunity to provide subsidies to the partner organisations, but there must 
be a clear business case for this.  The Regeneration and Assets Board are 
responsible for decisions on co-location and joint use of properties. 

2.96 We would therefore conclude that the Council meets all four of the indicators 
relating to the clear strategic approach to the implementation of the capital 
programme and asset management. 

 
 
 
 

Page 32



 

 23 

Process No. 10: ‘Local authorities undertake accommodation reviews 
and area/service property reviews in order to improve service delivery 
and the performance of their property assets.’ 

2.97 Property review is a generic term that covers an investigation of a specific 
property issue or a related group of property issues and can include, for 
example, area, service, accommodation, and non-operational property 
reviews. 

2.98 Eight good practice criteria have been identified in relation to undertaking 
property reviews: 
• implement a formal programme of reviews over an appropriate timescale, 

rather than carrying them out on an ad hoc basis – a series of reviews 
has been undertaken, addressing key issues across the property 
portfolio.  A review of office accommodation led to the strategy 
which is currently in the process of implementation and will lead to a 
significant rationalisation of accommodation.  Similarly, strategic 
reviews of sports centres and libraries have been undertaken and 
actions are now being implemented.  The Regeneration and Assets 
Board has now commissioned a review of community buildings, as 
part of the process of developing area Asset Management Plans.  
This is a reflection of the recognition that activities and the use of 
properties at the local area level need to be better coordinated, as 
there is insufficient capital and revenue resource to sustain the 
current range of properties; 

••  eemmppllooyy  aa  ssyysstteemmaattiicc  aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  rreevviieewwiinngg  tthhee  pprrooppeerrttyy  ppoorrttffoolliioo  
iinntteeggrraatteedd  aaccrroossss  tthhee  wwhhoollee  aauutthhoorriittyy  ––  tthhee  rreevviieeww  pprroocceessss  iiss  ccaarrrriieedd  oouutt  
iinn  aaccccoorrddaannccee  wwiitthh  tthhee  CCaappiittaall  aanndd  AAsssseett  MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  pprroocceedduurreess  
wwhhiicchh  ccoovveerrss  tthhee  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt,,  mmoonniittoorriinngg  aanndd  eevvaalluuaattiioonn  ooff  aasssseettss..    
TThhee  rreessuullttss  ooff  aallll  pprrooppeerrttyy  rreevviieewwss  aarree  ccoonnssiiddeerreedd  bbyy  tthhee  
RReeggeenneerraattiioonn  aanndd  AAsssseettss  BBooaarrdd;;  

••  lliinnkk  tthhee  rreevviieewwss  ddiirreeccttllyy  ttoo  aacchhiieevviinngg  tthhee  oobbjjeeccttiivveess  aanndd  pprriioorriittiieess  ooff  tthhee  
aauutthhoorriittyy  aanndd  cchhaalllleennggiinngg  tthhee  uussee  ooff  pprrooppeerrttyy  rreessoouurrcceess  ––  tthhee  aauutthhoorriittyy’’ss  
aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  aasssseett  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  iiss  ddrriivveenn  bbyy  tthhee  pprriinncciippllee  ooff  
ooppttiimmiissiinngg  tthhee  uuttiilliissaattiioonn  ooff  aasssseettss  iinn  tteerrmmss  ooff  sseerrvviiccee  bbeenneeffiittss  aanndd  
ffiinnaanncciiaall  rreettuurrnn..    TThhee  aapppprrooaacchh  ttoo  aasssseett  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  pprroovviiddeess  tthhee  
ssccooppee  ttoo  cchhaalllleennggee  tthhee  eexxiissttiinngg  uussee  ooff  pprrooppeerrttiieess  aanndd  ttoo  eennssuurree  tthhaatt  
aallll  pprrooppoosseedd  ffuuttuurree  aaccttiioonnss  aarree  tteesstteedd  aapppprroopprriiaatteellyy;;    

••  ffooccuuss  oonn  iimmpprroovviinngg  tthhee  qquuaalliittyy  ooff  sseerrvviiccee  ddeelliivveerryy,,  aass  wweellll  aass  ffiinnaanncciiaall  
ttaarrggeettss  ssuucchh  aass  tthhee  ggeenneerraattiioonn  ooff  ccaappiittaall  rreecceeiippttss  ––  tthhee  aaiimm  ooff  tthhee  
aauutthhoorriittyy’’ss  aasssseett  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt  aapppprrooaacchh  iiss  ffrraammeedd  iinn  tteerrmmss  ooff  bbootthh  
ooppttiimmiissiinngg  tthhee  uuttiilliissaattiioonn  ooff  aasssseettss  iinn  ddeelliivveerriinngg  sseerrvviiccee  bbeenneeffiittss  aanndd  
iinn  ggeenneerraattiinngg  ffiinnaanncciiaall  rreettuurrnnss..    TThhee  rreecceenntt  rreevviieeww  ooff  lliibbrraarriieess  
ffooccuusseedd  oonn  iimmpprroovviinngg  tthhee  aacccceessssiibbiilliittyy  ooff  sseerrvviicceess,,  wwhhiillsstt  tthhee  rreevviieeww  
ooff  lleeiissuurree  sseerrvviicceess  wwaass  ddrriivveenn  bbyy  tthhee  nneeeedd  ttoo  iimmpprroovvee  tthhee  oovveerraallll  
ssttaannddaarrddss  ooff  sseerrvviiccee  pprroovviiddeedd;;    

Page 33



 

 24 

••  iinnvvoollvvee  eelleecctteedd  mmeemmbbeerrss  wwhheenneevveerr  ppoossssiibbllee  aanndd  rreelleevvaanntt  iinn  oorrddeerr  ttoo  
pprroovviiddee  vvaalluuaabbllee  llooccaall  kknnoowwlleeddggee  ffoorr  rreevviieewwss  ––  tthhee  rreevviieewwss  aarree  
ccoommmmiissssiioonneedd  bbyy  tthhee  RReeggeenneerraattiioonn  aanndd  AAsssseettss  BBooaarrdd  aanndd  aarree  
tthheerreeffoorree  ddrriivveenn  bbyy  aanndd  rreecceeiivveedd  bbyy  eelleecctteedd  mmeemmbbeerrss..    IInn  aaddddiittiioonn,,  
wwaarrdd  mmeemmbbeerrss  wweerree  rreeppoorrtteedd  aass  bbeeccoommiinngg  iinnccrreeaassiinnggllyy  iinntteerreesstteedd  
aanndd  iinnvvoollvveedd  iinn  aasssseett  mmaannaaggeemmeenntt;;  

••  ttaarrggeett  tthhee  rreevviieeww  pprroocceessss  bbaasseedd  oonn  pprrooppeerrttyy  ppeerrffoorrmmaannccee  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  
pprroovviiddeedd  bbyy  tthhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  PPrrooppeerrttyy  DDaattaabbaassee  ––  tthhee  aavvaaiillaabbiilliittyy  ooff  
ccoommpprreehheennssiivvee  ddaattaa  oonn  tthhee  aauutthhoorriittyy’’ss  pprrooppeerrttiieess,,  aalloonnggssiiddee  ootthheerr  
rreelleevvaanntt  llooccaall  iinnffoorrmmaattiioonn  iinnffoorrmmss  tthhee  rreevviieewwss  tthhaatt  aarree  bbeeiinngg  
uunnddeerrttaakkeenn;;  

••  iimmpplleemmeenntt  pprriioorriittyy  aaccttiioonnss  aatt  aann  eeaarrllyy  ssttaaggee  wwiitthhoouutt  nneecceessssaarriillyy  wwaaiittiinngg  ffoorr  
rreevviieewwss  ttoo  bbee  ffuullllyy  ccoommpplleetteedd  ––  tthhee  iimmpplleemmeennttaattiioonn  ooff  iinnddiivviidduuaall  
rreevviieewwss  ddeeppeennddss  oonn  tthhee  ssccaallee  aanndd  ssccooppee  ooff  aaccttiivviittiieess..    IInn  ssoommee  
iinnssttaanncceess,,  rreellaattiivveellyy  qquuiicckk  aaccttiioonn  iiss  ppoossssiibbllee,,  wwhheerreeaass  iinn  ootthheerrss  tthheerree  
aarree  mmuucchh  mmoorree  ssiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  ttaasskkss  tthhaatt  nneeeedd  ttoo  bbee  ttaakkeenn  ffoorrwwaarrdd  iinn  
oorrddeerr  ttoo  aaccttiioonn  tthhee  rreevviieeww..    FFoorr  eexxaammppllee,,  tthhee  rreevviieeww  ooff  ooffffiiccee  
aaccccoommmmooddaattiioonn  lleedd  ttoo  tthhee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  ooff  tthhee  ooffffiiccee  aaccccoommmmooddaattiioonn  
ssttrraatteeggyy  wwhhiicchh  iiss  nnooww  iinn  tthhee  pprroocceessss  ooff  iimmpplleemmeennttaattiioonn  aanndd  wwiillll  hhaavvee  
aa  ssiiggnniiffiiccaanntt  iimmppaacctt  oonn  tthhee  wwaayy  iinn  wwhhiicchh  tthhee  aauutthhoorriittyy  ooppeerraatteess  ggooiinngg  
ffoorrwwaarrdd;;  

••  uussee  tthhee  rreevviieewwss  ttoo  ffaacciilliittaattee  ccrroossss--sseerrvviiccee//oorrggaanniissaattiioonn  wwoorrkkiinngg  oonn  tthhee  uussee  
aanndd  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  ooff  pprrooppeerrttyy  aasssseettss  ––  tthhee  aauutthhoorriittyy  iiss  sseeeekkiinngg  ttoo  bbrreeaakk  
ddoowwnn  bbaarrrriieerrss  bbeettwweeeenn  sseerrvviiccee  ddeeppaarrttmmeennttss  aanndd  tthhiiss  iiss  bbeeiinngg  lleedd  
tthhrroouugghh  tthhee  wwaayy  iinn  wwhhiicchh  tthhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  PPllaann  hhaass  bbeeeenn  ddeevveellooppeedd  
aanndd  iiss  bbeeiinngg  ddeelliivveerreedd..    TThhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  FFiinnaannccee  aanndd  AAsssseett  
MMaannaaggeemmeenntt  TTeeaamm  pprroovviiddeess  aa  ccrroossss--sseerrvviiccee  ffoorruumm  wwiitthhiinn  wwhhiicchh  ttoo  
ccoonnssiiddeerr  tthhee  aaccttiivviittiieess  ffrroomm  pprrooppeerrttyy  rreevviieewwss..    TThheerree  iiss  aallssoo  eevviiddeennccee  
ooff  rreevviieewwss  lleeaaddiinngg  ttoo  bbootthh  ccrroossss--sseerrvviiccee  aanndd  ccrroossss--oorrggaanniissaattiioonn  
wwoorrkkiinngg,,  wwiitthh  tthhee  ddeevveellooppmmeenntt  ooff  aa  lliibbrraarryy,,  ccuussttoommeerr  sseerrvviiccee  cceennttrree  
aanndd  eexxttrraa  ccaarree  hhoouussiinngg  oonn  tthhee  ssiittee  ooff  aa  ffoorrmmeerr  ssoocciiaall  sseerrvviicceess  hhoommee  
wwhhiicchh  hhaass  nnooww  bbeeeenn  bboouugghhtt  bbyy  tthhee  PPrriimmaarryy  CCaarree  TTrruusstt..  

2.99 Therefore, the Council is undertaking property reviews aimed at improving 
service delivery and the performance of assets in line with the good practice 
criteria. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 

 25 

Process No. 11: ‘Local authorities develop formal approaches to the appraisal 
of the options available for meeting the objectives of proposed capital 
projects, integrated with a formal approach to the prioritisation of capital 
projects.’ 
2.100 Option appraisal is an integral part of asset management, linked to the 

corporate strategies and plans of local authorities.  It should form part of a top-
down process that deals with these strategies and plans on a holistic basis 
and ensures that capital projects align with them.  Anything less would lead to 
significant risks of underused or misused resources. 

2.101 The use of option appraisal, including whole life costing, is at a very early 
stage of development in most local authorities and there is a long way to go 
before the requirements of the Prudential Code and the principles of sound 
capital programme management are generally met. 

2.102 The authority’s Capital Investment Plan sets out a range of criteria that must 
be met for any proposed project to be taken forward.  These include a 
requirement that all proposed projects must support the Theme priorities in the 
Corporate Plan and an option appraisal must have been carried out.  As part 
of this process of considering potential capital projects a funding appraisal 
must be carried out, considering all potential funding sources, including 
unsupported borrowing. 

2.103 The requirements of PFI and the Prudential Code led the authority to seek to 
develop competencies in the delivery of programmes of this nature.  The 
authority is taking forward a schools PFI project to design, build, finance and 
operate 15 schools and linked community facilities, whilst a further scheme is 
being taken forward to design, build, finance and operate new sports and 
leisure facilities.  Comprehensive option appraisals have been included during 
the development of these schemes. 

2.104 The approach to prioritisation adopted by the authority includes an explicit 
requirement to consider the impact on revenue budgets as well as the capital 
costs of any proposed schemes, thereby linking to the option appraisal 
approach.  Alignment of capital and revenue planning approaches are 
important in this respect. 

2.105 Therefore, the authority has embedded option appraisal in its approach to 
considering potential new capital schemes. 

 
 
 
 

Page 35



 

 26 

Process No. 12: ‘Local authorities develop a formal corporate approach 
to the prioritisation of capital projects in line with corporate objectives 
and priorities, integrated with a formal approach to option appraisal.’ 

2.106 Whilst the resources for capital investment available to many authorities have 
increased substantially over the past few years, they are still limited.  
Therefore, it is vital for authorities to be able to prioritise effectively in order to 
ensure that the planned capital projects make maximum use of the resources 
available so as to achieve best value. 

2.107 The authority has established four investment blocks: 
• dedicated – resources that can only be used for a specific purpose; 
••  mmaaiinntteennaannccee  ––  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  mmaaiinnttaaiinn  tthhee  eeffffeeccttiivvee,,  eeffffiicciieenntt  aanndd  

eeccoonnoommiicc  uussee  ooff  eexxiissttiinngg  aasssseettss;;  
••  ssttrraatteeggiicc  ––  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  iimmpplleemmeenntt  tthhee  ssttrraatteeggiieess  ddeevveellooppeedd  ttoo  

ddeelliivveerr  tthhee  TThheemmee  pprriioorriittiieess  iinn  tthhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  PPllaann;;  
••  eexxtteerrnnaall  ––  eennssuurriinngg  tthhaatt  tthhee  sscchheemmeess  tthhaatt  aarree  bbeeiinngg  ttaakkeenn  ffoorrwwaarrdd  wwiitthh  

eexxtteerrnnaall  ffuunnddiinngg  ggeett  tthhee  iinntteerrnnaall  cchhaalllleennggee  tthhaatt  iiss  aapppprroopprriiaattee  aanndd  tthhaatt  tthheeyy  
ssuuppppoorrtt  tthhee  ddeelliivveerryy  ooff  tthhee  TThheemmee  pprriioorriittiieess  iinn  tthhee  CCoorrppoorraattee  PPllaann..  

2.108 The criteria used in capital project prioritisation vary slightly between the four 
investment blocks.  Within the Strategic capital investment block, projects are 
also categorised by the amount of council capital investment required: 
• 1 – under £50,000; 
• 2 - £50,000 to £299,999; 
• - £300,000 to £999,999; 
• - £1 million and over. 

2.109 The Capital and Asset Team evaluate all projects within categories 1 and 2, in 
accordance with their priority rating, prepare a Strategic Capital investment 
programme and submit it to the Regeneration and Assets Board for approval.  
Recommendations regarding proposed projects in categories 3 and 4 are 
submitted to Cabinet for approval of the programme allocations. 

2.110 For maintenance capital investment, the Capital and Asset Team consider all 
potential projects and submit recommendations to the Regeneration and 
Assets Board. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 

 27 

2.11 The criteria used to prioritise potential capital projects include: 
• contribution to Corporate Plan themes; 
••  iimmppaacctt,,  iinn  rreellaattiioonn  ttoo  CCPPAA  aanndd  iinnssppeeccttiioonnss,,  CCoorrppoorraattee  PPeerrffoorrmmaannccee  PPllaann  

iinnddiiccaattoorrss,,  CCoorrppoorraattee  PPllaann  oobbjjeeccttiivveess  aanndd  ttaarrggeettss;;  
••  eeccoonnoommiicc  ––  ccoouunncciill  ccaappiittaall  iinnvveessttmmeenntt  rreeqquuiirreedd,,  iimmppaacctt  oonn  rreevveennuuee  

bbuuddggeettss,,  eexxtteerrnnaall  ffuunnddss;;  
••  ppoolliittiiccaall  iimmppoorrttaannccee..  

2.112 We have identified the following six good practice criteria that capital 
prioritisation systems should meet: 
• Coverage: the system should cover most, if not all, capital projects – the 

use of the priority rating methodology to cover all elements of the 
capital programme, including externally funded projects that require 
either some capital investment by the Council or have revenue 
implications mean that the prioritisation system achieves 
comprehensive coverage; 

••  FFiitt  ffoorr  PPuurrppoossee::  tthhee  ssttrruuccttuurree  aanndd  ssoopphhiissttiiccaattiioonn  ooff  tthhee  ssyysstteemm  sshhoouulldd  bbee  
aapppprroopprriiaattee  ttoo  tthhee  ssccaallee  aanndd  nnaattuurree  ooff  bbootthh  tthhee  ccaappiittaall  pprrooggrraammmmee  ooff  tthhee  
aauutthhoorriittyy  aanndd  tthhee  ssccaallee  ooff  iinnddiivviidduuaall  pprroojjeeccttss  ––  tthhee  pprriioorriittyy  rraattiinngg  
mmeetthhooddoollooggyy  pprroovviiddeess  aa  cclleeaarr  aanndd  ssttrraaiigghhttffoorrwwaarrdd  mmeecchhaanniissmm  
tthhrroouugghh  wwhhiicchh  ttoo  aasssseessss  ppootteennttiiaall  ccaappiittaall  pprroojjeeccttss..    IItt  wwaass  rreeppoorrtteedd  
bbyy  ooffffiicceerrss  wwiitthhiinn  sseerrvviiccee  ddeeppaarrttmmeennttss  tthhaatt  iitt  pprroovviiddeess  aa  vveerryy  
ttrraannssppaarreenntt  ssyysstteemm  tthhaatt  iiss  ffaaiirr  iinn  ssuuppppoorrttiinngg  ddeecciissiioonnss  oonn  ppootteennttiiaall  
ccaappiittaall  sscchheemmeess..    PPrreevviioouussllyy,,  iitt  wwaass  ffoouunndd  tthhaatt  tthheerree  wwaass  lliittttllee  
ttrraannssppaarreennccyy  iinn  tthhee  ddeecciissiioonnss  rreeggaarrddiinngg  ppootteennttiiaall  pprroojjeeccttss;;  

••  CChhaalllleennggee::  aa  pprroocceessss  ooff  cchhaalllleennggee  sshhoouulldd  ttaakkee  ppllaaccee  ssoo  tthhaatt  pprroojjeecctt  
pprrooppoossaallss  ccaann  bbee  ddeevveellooppeedd  iinn  oorrddeerr  ttoo  ggeenneerraattee  mmaaxxiimmuumm  iimmppaacctt  iinn  
tteerrmmss  ooff  mmeeeettiinngg  ccoorrppoorraattee  aanndd  sseerrvviiccee  oobbjjeeccttiivveess  ––  tthhee  cchhaalllleennggee  
eelleemmeenntt  iinn  tthhee  pprriioorriittiissaattiioonn  aapppprrooaacchh  iiss  aacchhiieevveedd  tthhrroouugghh  tthhee  
iinnvvoollvveemmeenntt  ooff  tthhee  CCaappiittaall  aanndd  AAsssseett  tteeaamm  iinn  ccaarrrryyiinngg  oouutt  tthhee  
pprriioorriittiissaattiioonn  aanndd  tthheenn  ddeevveellooppiinngg  rreeccoommmmeennddaattiioonnss  eeiitthheerr  ffoorr  tthhee  
RReeggeenneerraattiioonn  aanndd  AAsssseettss  BBooaarrdd  oorr  tthhee  CCaabbiinneett..    TThhiiss  tthheerreeffoorree  
mmeeaannss  tthhaatt  tthheerree  iiss  aa  ccrroossss--sseerrvviiccee  ppeerrssppeeccttiivvee  iinn  ddeevveellooppiinngg  tthhee  
ssccoorriinngg;;  

••  MMooddeerraattiioonn  aanndd  RReevviieeww::  tthheerree  wwiillll  nneeeedd  ttoo  bbee  aa  pprroocceessss  ooff  mmooddeerraattiioonn  aanndd  
rreevviieeww  iinn  oorrddeerr  ttoo  eennssuurree  tthhaatt  tthhee  bbeenneeffiittss  aanndd  iimmppaacctt  ooff  sscchheemmeess  hhaavvee  
bbeeeenn  aaddeeqquuaatteellyy  rreefflleecctteedd  iinn  tthhee  ssccoorriinngg  ––  tthhiiss  rroollee  iiss  ppllaayyeedd  bbyy  tthhee  
eelleecctteedd  mmeemmbbeerrss  iinn  tthhee  RReeggeenneerraattiioonn  aanndd  AAsssseett  BBooaarrdd;;  

Page 37



 

 28 

••  LLiinnkk  ttoo  OOppttiioonn  AApppprraaiissaall::  tthhee  oobbjjeeccttiivvee  ooff  sseeccuurriinngg  bbeesstt  vvaalluuee  ffoorr  mmoonneeyy  
ffrroomm  tthhee  lliimmiitteedd  ccaappiittaall  rreessoouurrcceess  aavvaaiillaabbllee  bbyy  aallllooccaattiinngg  ffuunnddiinngg  ttoo  tthhoossee  
pprroojjeeccttss  tthhaatt  bbeesstt  mmeeeett  ccoorrppoorraattee  oobbjjeeccttiivveess  aanndd  pprriioorriittiieess  wwiillll  oonnllyy  bbee  
aacchhiieevveedd  iiff  eeaacchh  ooff  tthhee  pprroojjeeccttss  hhaass  aallssoo  bbeeeenn  ssuubbjjeecctt  ttoo  aann  ooppttiioonn  
aapppprraaiissaall  ttoo  eennssuurree  tthhaatt  tthhee  pprrooppoossaall  ppuutt  ffoorrwwaarrdd  iiss  tthhee  bbeesstt  ffoorr  mmeeeettiinngg  
tthhee  pprroojjeecctt  oobbjjeeccttiivveess  ––  aass  iinnddiiccaatteedd  aabboovvee,,  aallll  pprrooppoosseedd  ccaappiittaall  
pprroojjeeccttss  aarree  rreeqquuiirreedd  ttoo  bbee  ssuubbjjeecctt  ttoo  bbootthh  ooppttiioonn  aapppprraaiissaall  aanndd  
ffuunnddiinngg  aapppprraaiissaall;;  

••  IInnppuutt  ffrroomm  EElleecctteedd  MMeemmbbeerrss::  tthhee  oouuttppuutt  ffrroomm  aa  pprriioorriittiissaattiioonn  mmooddeell  wwiillll  
aallwwaayyss  nneeeedd  ttoo  bbee  iinntteerrpprreetteedd  bbyy  bbootthh  ooffffiicceerrss  aanndd  eelleecctteedd  mmeemmbbeerrss  aanndd  iitt  
sshhoouulldd  pprroovviiddee  aa  cclleeaarr  gguuiiddee  ttoo  ddeecciissiioonn--mmaakkiinngg  rraatthheerr  tthhaann  bbeeiinngg  aa  
ssttrraaiittjjaacckkeett  ffrroomm  wwhhiicchh  tthheerree  ccaann  bbee  nnoo  vvaarriiaattiioonn  ––  ffiinnaall  rreessppoonnssiibbiilliittyy  ffoorr  
ddeecciissiioonn  mmaakkiinngg  rreessttss  wwiitthh  eeiitthheerr  tthhee  RReeggeenneerraattiioonn  aanndd  AAsssseettss  BBooaarrdd  
oorr  tthhee  CCaabbiinneett  ddeeppeennddiinngg  oonn  tthhee  ssccaallee  ooff  tthhee  pprrooppoosseedd  sscchheemmee..  

2.13 Therefore, the Council has adopted an approach to prioritisation that is in line 
with all six of the identified good practice criteria. 

Conclusions 
2.114 The Council performs well in relation to all 12 of the good practice processes, 

reflecting the commitment that has been made both by elected members and 
officers in this area of operations.  

Page 38



 

 29 

 PROCESS OUTPUTS AND OUTCOMES 

Introduction 
3.1 The evaluation framework for the development and implementation of 

corporate capital strategies and asset management plans identifies six 
process outputs and three potential process outcomes.  Outputs are defined 
as the actions and activities stemming from the processes discussed in 
Section 2, whilst outcomes are the impacts of these actions and activities and 
long term and sustainable changes in organisational and cultural structures. 

3.2 In this Section, we summarise the current position of this case study authority 
in relation to the generation of these process outputs and outcomes, drawing 
on the material from Section 2. 

Process Outputs 
Output No. 1: ‘Elected members are more effectively engaged with 
strategic decision-making on property issues.’ 

3.3 There is clear evidence of elected members being effectively engaged in 
capital and asset planning.  In particular, this relates to the role played by the 
Regeneration and Assets Board, which involves approximately half of the 
members of the cabinet in regular consideration of issues in relation to the 
Council’s property portfolio and, in particular, commissions reviews 
undertaken of the property portfolio, and is actively engaged in decision-
making regarding the capital programme.  The development of clear terms of 
reference for the Regeneration and Assets Board, in its transition from the 
Property Board that was originally established, with the granting of decision-
making powers, shows evidence of more effective engagement of elected 
members in decision-making.  Decision-making was reported during case 
study consultations as being quicker now than it had been previously. 

3.4 However, it is important to recognise that the improved effectiveness in 
involving elected members in decision-making is not limited to the operation of 
the Regeneration and Assets Board.  There are clear approaches in place to 
ensure that ward members are involved in decisions relating to key properties 
in their areas.  In addition, seminars are held to keep non-Executive members 
informed of what the authority is carrying out, to ensure that they are able to 
contribute more effectively to decision-making.  There is also reported to be 
greater interest from the Scrutiny panels which has been driven by increasing 
recognition of the revenue implications of major capital programmes, in 
particular the significant PFI programmes. 

 
 

Page 39



 

 30 

3.4 Therefore, we conclude that Output No. 1 has been generated. 

Output No. 2: ‘Decisions regarding the use, retention and maintenance 
of property are based on evidence from databases, property 
performance indicators and the experience of external organisations.’ 

3.6 The Council’s approach to gathering and holding property information means 
that they have a base of evidence relating to the property portfolio that can be 
used to support decision-making. 

3.7 It is clear that the evidence held by the authority has been used to good effect 
in targeting its activities appropriately.  For example, evidence on condition 
and suitability were key factors that were used in identifying the specific 
schools to be updated through the PFI scheme that is now in progress.  
Similarly, the data on the council’s sports facilities showed that they are 
inadequate, poorly sited and poorly performing, leading to a PFI scheme to 
provide significantly improved facilities across key locations in the borough.  
Evidence from the review of corporate accommodation was used to develop 
the accommodation strategy that is now in the process of being implemented, 
which will significantly reduce the number of sites that the authority is 
occupying in the main town centre. 

3.8 One of the Council’s strengths in terms of the use of data is that it is not 
considering property data in isolation, but is placing this information alongside 
other relevant data to support decision making.  For example, socio-
demographic data has been used to inform the locations that have been 
selected for the Council’s Customer Service Centres, thereby ensuring that 
they are located most appropriately for current and potential service users. 

3.9 The Council is monitoring the COPROP pPIs, providing an ability to track 
trends in relation to property performance over time, although there was 
limited evidence during the case study consultations that significant use is 
being made of comparisons with other local authorities or other organisations. 

3.10 Therefore, we conclude that Output No. 2 has been generated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 40



 

 31 

Output No. 3: ‘More effective management of the capital programme is 
introduced.’ 

3.11 The Council has internal project management capacity and has established 
external partnering arrangements covering all aspects of the delivery of 
construction projects, including project management.  Working with its external 
project management partner, the Council has developed a Project Procedural 
Guide which provides a clear and consistent framework for the management 
of all projects based on applying good practice from the construction industry 
to all projects. 

3.12 All projects have a named project manager, providing accountability for 
effective delivery, which may be a Council officer or from the external partner. 
For larger projects, the Regeneration and Assets Board will act as the client 
on behalf of the Council and as the agent of the Cabinet.  A Project Officer will 
be formally identified and Officer Board and sub-groups established as 
appropriate for these large schemes.  For example, the Asset Management 
Department currently includes a Project Coordinator for the Town Centre 
Development.  These arrangements therefore provide a mechanism to ensure 
that the delivery of the capital programme at the project level is effective. 

3.13 The Council has now aligned the planning of its capital and revenue 
programmes, to ensure that decision-making takes account of both the capital 
and revenue implications of the schemes it takes forward.  The five-year 
capital programme is now based on a clear understanding of what the 
authority is seeking to achieve as a whole, rather than being based on the 
amalgamation of a number of disparate projects. 

3.14 The Council is in the process of strengthening its approach to capital 
programme monitoring.  This includes the development of statements to the 
Corporate Management Team and Cabinet on capital spend against forecast 
and the identification of any reasons for variations.  The £1.5 million per 
annum maintenance fund is to be monitored on the basis of outcomes on 
individual maintenance projects, rather than across the fund as a whole, 
therefore helping to ensure transparency in relation to programme delivery 
and performance. 

3.15 We therefore conclude that Output No. 3 has been generated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



 

 32 

Output No. 4: ‘Investment decisions are based on a clear business case 
resulting from the use of a formal corporate approach to option 
appraisal including whole-life costing.’ 

3.16 Option appraisal is an explicit requirement within the Council’s Capital 
Investment Plan and programmes and projects will only be considered if an 
option appraisal and a funding appraisal has been carried out. 

3.17 The evidence of option appraisal having been carried out includes the 
redevelopment of a country park in the borough which is about to go forward 
to delivery.  The country park was originally identified by the Council for 
disposal in order to reduce the revenue costs associated with its operation and 
upkeep.  A range of options was considered in relation to the park, including 
disposal, bringing in an external partner to manage the programme more cost 
effectively and seeking suggestions from potential external partners to deliver 
a much more ambitious scheme.  As a result of this, a panel was established 
and an OJEU process was established, which led to six proposals.  The 
successful proposal is now at the detailed planning stage and will be a £350 
million scheme which is due for completion in 2010. 

3.18 We therefore conclude that Output No. 4 has been generated. 

Output No. 5: ‘The capital programme is developed on the basis of a 
prioritised list of potential capital projects.’ 

3.19 As part of its Capital and Asset Management Strategies, Plans and 
Programmes, the Council has implemented the use of a priority rating 
methodology, adapted to the requirements of the four capital investment 
blocks that have now been established.  All potential capital projects are 
therefore subject to prioritisation before inclusion in the capital programme. 

3.20 Therefore, we conclude that Output No. 5 has been generated. 

Output No. 6: ‘Greater cross-cutting working and capital projects across 
service areas are implemented.’ 

3.21 The way in which capital and asset planning and delivery is organised is built 
around cross-cutting working, which has been driven from the way in which 
the Corporate Plan is set out and in ensuring that the groups of elected 
members and senior officers have a cross-cutting remit.  The capital 
investment priority rating system specifically emphasises cross-cutting 
working.  A potential scheme supporting only one service area has a potential 
rating of zero in this element of the prioritisation, whilst a proposed scheme 
supporting three or more service areas would receive a rating of 10. 

Page 42



 

 33 

3.22 The Council is now in the process of establishing six Customer Service 
Centres/Joint Service Centres across the borough.  These provide residents 
with access to services across all main service departments, and in some 
cases to the services of partner organisations also.  This involves the 
integration of the customer-facing cross-service processes and systems with 
the back-office and service-specific activities. 

3.23 The delivery of the new office accommodation for the council will be a major 
scheme which will improve accommodation across all the authority’s service 
departments.  This scheme is a recognition that a fundamental change to the 
way in which accommodation is provided is necessary to address the 
underlying issues of a large number of poor quality buildings requiring 
significant investment dispersed across the town. 

3.24 We would therefore conclude that Output No. 6 has been achieved. 

Process Outcomes 
3.25 The following three potential process outcomes have been identified: 

• more effective use of capital resources; 
• more effective and efficient use of property assets; 
• improved service delivery. 

3.26 The implementation of a more corporate and strategic approach to the capital 
programme and the use of property assets is generally at too early a stage in 
most authorities for process outcomes to be observed with any confidence.  In 
our experience, only the most advanced authorities are currently generating, 
to a significant extent, any of the outcomes. 

More Effective Use of Capital Resources 
3.27 A range of evidence was suggested to indicate that the Council is making 

more effective use of its capital resources.  In particular, the move towards the 
prioritisation system in developing the capital programme, including the use of 
option appraisal, has provided a structure to ensure that the capital 
expenditure that is taken forward is focused effectively on delivering the 
Council’s priorities and takes account of a wide range of issues in shaping 
final decisions on the capital programme.  The establishment of the four 
blocks of capital funding have also been identified as leading to more effective 
use of the resources available to the authority, in particular ensuring that 
resources are used to contribute to the achievement of the Council’s 
aspirations, rather than being focused purely on backlog issues. 

Page 43



 

 34 

3.28 The Strategic Capital Investment block is developed on the basis of potential 
projects that would deliver Corporate and Community Plan priorities, which are 
prioritised, following which consideration is given to how best to finance the 
delivery of the highest priority schemes.  This has led to the identification of a 
total of 11 highest category projects to be delivered over the next five years, 
with a total value of £115 million and to be funded through prudential 
borrowing and capital receipts from the disposal of current buildings.   

3.29 The changes in the way in which the capital programme is developed and 
organised provide an indication of more robust systems for decisions 
regarding capital expenditure.  It is entirely logical that these should lead to 
capital resources being used more effectively than previously, although it is 
not clear that there is hard evidence that would demonstrate this to be the 
case.   

More Effective and Efficient Use of Property Assets 
3.30 There are three specific examples of the increasing focus on asset 

management leading to more effective and efficient use of property assets: 
• the Council is implementing an Adult Services Modernisation Strategy, in 

response to a number of issues identified in delivering the service.  In 
particular, residential homes did not conform to the minimum standards 
required and were in need of considerable investment in order to 
continue to function.  As a result of this, the Council is closing a number 
of homes for the elderly.  Eight homes are being closed, with two new 
purpose-built homes being provided, with funding through a combination 
of capital receipts and prudential borrowing.  As part of this process, the 
Primary Care Trust (PCT) is buying one of the surplus properties, which 
is to be renovated and will provide accommodation for the PCT itself and 
a doctors’ surgery, together with a Customer Service Centre, a library 
and a small Social Services Resource Centre.  Extra care housing is 
also to be developed on the site; 

••  tthhee  nneeww  ooffffiiccee  aaccccoommmmooddaattiioonn  ffoorr  tthhee  ccoouunncciill  wwiillll  lleeaadd  ttoo  aa  rreedduuccttiioonn  iinn  
tthhee  nnuummbbeerr  ooff  ttoowwnn  cceennttrree  ooffffiicceess  ffrroomm  1111  ttoo  aa  ssiinnggllee  ssiittee..    WWiitthh  tthhee  
mmoovvee  ttoo  cceennttrraall  aaccccoommmmooddaattiioonn,,  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  iiss  mmoovviinngg  ttoo  ffuullll  aaddooppttiioonn  ooff  
fflleexxiibbllee  wwoorrkkiinngg,,  wwhhiicchh  hhaass  pprreevviioouussllyy  bbeeeenn  ppiillootteedd  iinn  tthhee  RReevveennuueess  aanndd  
BBeenneeffiittss  sseerrvviiccee..    TThhee  nneeww  aaccccoommmmooddaattiioonn  wwiillll  bbee  6600%%  ssmmaalllleerr  tthhaann  tthhee  
ccuurrrreenntt  aaccccoommmmooddaattiioonn;;  

••  tthhee  CCoouunncciill  iiss  ccuurrrreennttllyy  iinn  tthhee  pprroocceessss  ooff  rree--pprroovviiddiinngg  sswwiimmmmiinngg  ppoooollss  
aanndd  iinnddoooorr  lleeiissuurree  ffaacciilliittiieess  aaccrroossss  tthhee  bboorroouugghh..    IInn  eexxcceessss  ooff  ££3311  mmiilllliioonn  
iiss  bbeeiinngg  ssppeenntt  oonn  rreeppllaacciinngg  1133  aaggeeiinngg  sswwiimmmmiinngg  ppoooollss  wwiitthh  ffoouurr  nneeww  
iinnddoooorr  ssppoorrttss  cceennttrreess  ssiitteedd  aaccrroossss  tthhee  bboorroouugghh  ttoo  eennssuurree  mmaaxxiimmuumm  
aacccceessss  ffoorr  ccuurrrreenntt  aanndd  ppootteennttiiaall  sseerrvviiccee  uusseerrss..  

 

Improved Service Delivery 

Page 44



 

 35 

3.31 The Council’s approach to asset management is built on the ethos of 
‘optimising the utilisation of assets in terms of service benefits and financial 
return’.  It is important to consider, therefore, the extent to which all the 
activities that the authority is undertaking in relation to asset management are, 
in fact, leading to service improvements.  The following four examples provide 
clear evidence of service improvements being delivered through the asset 
management service: 

• a strategic review of Libraries provision was carried out to determine 
whether libraries met the Public Libraries Standards, community needs 
and the Council’s corporate priorities.  As a result of this review, £1 
million of funding was secured for investment in libraries across the 
borough, with priorities based on achieving accessibility and compliance 
with the Disability Discrimination Act (DDA).  All libraries across the 
borough are now DDA compliant.  The Council has made a commitment 
to have a library within two miles of every resident.  To achieve this, the 
Council is working in partnership with two Parish Councils to open three 
temporary ‘micro’ libraries in a leisure centre, village hall and parish hall, 
with other libraries to be renewed within the Council’s Joint Service 
Centres in future; 

••  tthhee  ffoouurr  nneeww  sswwiimmmmiinngg  ppoooollss  aanndd  iinnddoooorr  ssppoorrttss  ffaacciilliittiieess  tthhaatt  aarree  
ccuurrrreennttllyy  bbeeiinngg  ddeelliivveerreedd  ttoo  rreeppllaaccee  tthhee  pprreevviioouuss  ppoooorr  qquuaalliittyy  ffaacciilliittiieess  wwiillll  
eeaacchh  iinncclluuddee  aa  mmaaiinn  ppooooll  aanndd  tteeaacchhiinngg  ppooooll,,  ttooggeetthheerr  wwiitthh  ootthheerr  ffaacciilliittiieess  
iinn  eeaacchh  llooccaattiioonn..    TThheessee  ootthheerr  ffaacciilliittiieess  wwiillll  iinncclluuddee  aa  lleeiissuurree  ppooooll  aanndd  
fflluummee,,  ddiivviinngg  ppooooll,,  ffiittnneessss  ssuuiitteess,,  ssppoorrttss  hhaallllss  aanndd  aann  iinnddoooorr  cclliimmbbiinngg  
ttoowweerr..    TThhee  ffoouurr  nneeww  ssppoorrttss  cceennttrreess  hhaavvee  bbeeeenn  ssiitteedd  ttoo  pprroovviiddee  llooccaattiioonnss  
aaccrroossss  tthhee  bboorroouugghh  wwiitthh  eeaassyy  aacccceessss  ffoorr  eexxiissttiinngg  aanndd  ppootteennttiiaall  sseerrvviiccee  
uusseerrss..    TThhee  nneeww  ffaacciilliittiieess  aarree  bbeeiinngg  ddeelliivveerreedd  tthhrroouugghh  tthhee  uussee  ooff  rree--
ffooccuusseedd  rreevveennuuee  rreessoouurrcceess  aanndd  tthhee  PPrriivvaattee  FFiinnaannccee  IInniittiiaattiivvee  aanndd  aarree  ttoo  
bbee  mmaannaaggeedd  aanndd  mmaaiinnttaaiinneedd  tthhrroouugghh  aa  lleeiissuurree  ttrruusstt  oovveerr  aa  3322--yyeeaarr  
ppeerriioodd..    TThhee  nneeww  ffaacciilliittiieess  wweerree  ddeessccrriibbeedd  dduurriinngg  tthhee  ccaassee  ssttuuddyy  
ccoonnssuullttaattiioonnss  aass  ‘‘cchhaannggiinngg  tthhee  ffaaccee  ooff  lleeiissuurree  pprroovviissiioonn  iinn  tthhee  bboorroouugghh’’;;  

••  tthhee  eessttaabblliisshhmmeenntt  ooff  CCuussttoommeerr  SSeerrvviiccee  CCeennttrreess  aaccrroossss  tthhee  bboorroouugghh,,  
aanndd  tthheeiirr  eexxtteennssiioonn  ttoo  ffoorrmm  JJooiinntt  SSeerrvviiccee  CCeennttrreess..    TThhee  JJooiinntt  SSeerrvviiccee  
CCeennttrreess  iinncclluuddee  aa  oonnee--ssttoopp--sshhoopp  ffoorr  ccoouunncciill  sseerrvviicceess,,  aa  lliibbrraarryy,,  ddiissttrriicctt  
ooffffiiccee,,  ddrroopp--iinn  ddeesskkss  ffoorr  ccoouunncciill  ssttaaffff  aanndd  aallssoo  hhoouussee  ssttaaffff  ffrroomm  tthhee  
PPrriimmaarryy  CCaarree  TTrruusstt  aanndd  tthhee  ppoolliiccee  aanndd  iinn  ssoommee  ccaasseess  ddooccttoorrss’’  ssuurrggeerriieess,,  
mmeeaanniinngg  tthhaatt  aacccceessss  ttoo  ccoouunncciill  aanndd  wwiiddeerr  ppuubblliicc  sseerrvviicceess  iiss  ggrreeaattllyy  
iimmpprroovveedd..    TThheessee  aapppprrooaacchheess  wweerree  ddeevveellooppeedd  ffoolllloowwiinngg  aa  rreeccooggnniittiioonn  
tthhaatt  aacccceessssiibbiilliittyy  ooff  tthhee  CCoouunncciill’’ss  sseerrvviicceess  wwaass  ffaalllliinngg  bbeehhiinndd  tthhaatt  ooff  ootthheerr  
llooccaall  aauutthhoorriittiieess;;  

Page 45



 

 36 

••  tthhee  mmaaiinn  mmuusseeuumm  iinn  tthhee  ttoowwnn  wwaass  ssuubbjjeecctt  ttoo  aa  ££33  mmiilllliioonn  uuppggrraaddee,,  
ffuunnddeedd  tthhrroouugghh  tthhee  HHeerriittaaggee  LLootttteerryy  FFuunndd..    PPrriioorr  ttoo  tthhee  rreeffuurrbbiisshhmmeenntt,,  
tthhee  mmuusseeuumm  wwaass  iinn  tthhee  lloowweerr  qquuaarrttiillee  ffoorr  uusseerr  ssaattiissffaaccttiioonn  aanndd  iiss  nnooww  iinn  
tthhee  uuppppeerr  qquuaarrttiillee..    PPrriioorr  ttoo  iittss  rree--ooppeenniinngg,,  iitt  wwaass  ffoorreeccaasstt  tthhaatt  tthheerree  
wwoouulldd  bbee  6600,,000000  vviissiittoorrss  ttoo  tthhee  mmuusseeuumm  aannnnuuaallllyy..    DDuurriinngg  tthhee  ffiirrsstt  yyeeaarr  
ooff  ooppeerraattiioonn  ffoolllloowwiinngg  tthhee  rreeffuurrbbiisshhmmeenntt,,  tthhee  mmuusseeuumm  rreecceeiivveedd  aa  ttoottaall  ooff  
110033,,000000  vviissiittoorrss..  

Page 46



 

 37 

4 CONCLUSIONS 

4.1 The Council has made a significant commitment to this area of work, as 
demonstrated by the processes and systems that have been established.  
This commitment was recognised with the Council achieving Beacon status for 
asset management. 

4.2 It is clear that the corporate approach to asset management has been driven 
by the recognition of the significance of appropriate property assets in 
delivering services to a high standard. 

4.3 The success of the approach to capital planning and asset management is 
linked to a significant degree to the emphasis that has been placed on more 
corporate working as a whole in the council, which has been an important 
enabling factor.  This was part of a proactive approach to drive overall 
improvement in the performance of the Council. 

4.4 The approach to asset planning and management adopted by the Council 
means that it has both a well-resourced and experienced team of corporate 
officers and access to a broad base of expertise from a number of external 
partner organisations.  This therefore enables a strong ‘mixed economy’ 
approach to asset management. 

4.5 The authority is making good use of the data it now holds on its property 
portfolio in supporting decision making.  Of particular significance is the use of 
property data alongside other strategic and socio-demographic data to support 
decisions on the location of new facilities, for example.  This is a more 
sophisticated approach to the use of property data than is often observed, and 
reflects the relative maturity of the approach that has been established.  
Further enhancements to the data held on properties, to include additional 
information on community assets, not just those owned by the Council, will 
help to support even more ‘rounded’ decision making. 

4.6 As a result of the well-embedded approach to capital and asset planning and 
management, the Council is seeing a range of outputs delivered.  Significant 
improvements to the property portfolio have already been achieved, with 
considerable additional improvements in progress or about to commence.  
These improvements are being seen to lead to enhanced access to services 
and improvements to the services themselves. 

4.7 The Council has a clear vision of what it is seeking to achieve with its 
properties, combined with an understanding of what needs to be done to 
achieve this vision.  This is leading to major transformational schemes being 
taken forward, reflecting the fundamental changes required in order to achieve 
a property portfolio that is fit-for-purpose to achieve current and emerging 
strategic priorities. 

Page 47



 1 

 
 
 
1.  Meeting: REGENERATION & ASSET BOARD 

2.  Date: 11th July 2007 

3.  Title: INDUSTRIAL LAND & FLOORSPACE 2006 

4.  Programme Area: ENVIRONMENT & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 
5. Summary 
 
The net total floor-space on Rotherham’s employment sites rose to almost 2.6 million 
square metres in 2006, with 60,000 sq m. constructed in the last year - 21% of the 
total floorspace in Rotherham has been constructed within the last 10 years. 2006 
was another good year for the uptake of land for economic development, a fall on the 
very high amount seen in 2005 but 20.05 hectares was the second highest rate since 
2000. By the end of 2006 there were 291.2 hectares of available undeveloped land 
in Rotherham identified for industrial or mixed use. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
That the Board note the progress on the development of business space 
within the Borough. 
 
That the following measures be adopted to manage the existing vacancy rate 
on the Borough’s industrial estates: 
 

• That the Council optimises its position on future development for 
speculative use, except in the case of Rotherham town centre which 
could greatly benefit from speculative office developments, and that the 
Council disposes of industrial sites only for known end users where 
these can be identified. 

 
• That the Council contacts the owners of industrial premises which are 

redundant, derelict or in need of significant capital investment to return 
them to operational use, in order to establish a programme of Council 
intervention.  There is scope for some older premises to be refurbished 
to suit particular requirements and fit respective budgets. 

 
• That RiDO work with owners, agents and developers to market these 

properties and suggest alternative uses.  Where a change of use has 
potential planning implications, RiDO will liaise with the Planning 
Department on the suitability of any suggested schemes. 

RMBC – REPORT TO CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM 

Agenda Item 6Page 48



 2 

 
• That the following sectors are targeted to locate in the borough; 

Advanced Manufacturing and Metals (high value 
engineering/manufacturing) that has a modern industrial requirement, 
Creative and Digital Industries which are mainly office based but could 
have a requirement for hybrid units, Business and Professional Services 
that are mainly office based, and Energy and Environmental Technology 
Businesses that again could require hybrid units and sometimes 
laboratories and industrial accommodation. 

 
• That RiDO continues to use its Key Account Management programme to 

improve business retention within the borough as demand for property 
is driven by a wide range of factors such as skills shortages, market 
changes etc. 

 
 
 
7. Proposals and Details 
 
The net total floor-space on Rotherham’s employment sites rose to almost 2.6 million 
square metres in 2006. Between 2005 and 2006 it increased by 35,500 sq m. This 
accounts for almost 60,000 sq. m of newly constructed and 25,500 sq. m of 
demolitions. The new constructions are less than the very high rates experienced in 
2005 but above the 2004 figure and similar to the average seen over the last 10 
years. Between 1996 and 2006 there has been an increase of 544,000 sq. m. – i.e. 
21% of the total floorspace has been constructed within the last 10 years.  
 
The new floorspace construction of 60,000 sq m was mainly due to activity in the 
Northern area of the borough which had 57% of the total new floorspace - this was 
primarily due to the large development at Brookfields Park for the Garnett Dickinson 
print works. The Southern area accounted for 35% of the total increase with 
significant development at Waverley (Castings Technology, TWI) and Dinnington. 
The Central area accounted for 8% of the increase, chiefly due to the Moorgate 
Crofts development.  
 

Page 49



 3 

-

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

Sq
 m

1 9
9 3

1 9
9 4

1 9
9 5

1 9
9 6

1 9
9 7

1 9
9 8

1 9
9 9

2 0
0 0

2 0
0 1

2 0
0 2

2 0
0 3

2 0
0 4

2 0
0 5

2 0
0 6

Floorspace constructed for Economic Development in 
Rotherham, 1993 - 2006

Southern
Central
Northern

  
Source: RMBC 

 
There were three demolitions in 2006 totalling almost 26,000 sq m. of floorspace – 
the former Templeborough Rolling Mills (for new business park), plot on Wharf Road 
Kilnhurst Industrial Area (for residential development), and a small unit on Hellaby 
Industrial estate (new industrial building to be erected). 
 
Following is the list of major floorspace developments in the borough in 2006 (sized 
over 1,000 sq m): 
  

Industrial Area Name Address Details of Development Sq.m.
Manvers Century Business Park Off Manvers Way 6 Industrial Blocks for Network Space (30 units) 2,375

Manvers Brookfields Park Brookfields Way
Distribution centre - warehouse, offices and new print 
works with associated service areas -  Garnett Dickinson 11,795

Manvers Brookfields Park Brookfields Way Erection of units by St Pauls Developemnt 16,350
Manvers Brookfields Park Brookfields Way As above - one already let to Garnett Dickinson 2,518
Moorgate Crofts Business Park Alma Road Erection of 3 x 3 storey office blocks 2,720
Dinnington West Carr Road Erection of 4 factory units - New Park Projects 4,035
Dinnington Caxton Way Industrial building and offices for James West Ltd 2,995
Dinnington Nobel Way Erection of production facility for UK Radiopharma Ltd 1,100
Waverley AMP Brunel Way Erection of 2 storey building for TWI Ltd 1,510
Waverley AMP Brunel Way Erection of R&D workshop/office for Castings Tech. Int. 6,380
Waverley AMP Brunel Way Erection of 3 storey office/workshop for Yorkshire Forward 4,342  
The majority of new floorspace constructed in 2006 was for business/office use 
(41%) and general industrial use (39%). Storage and distribution accounted for 18% 
of new floorspace with a further 2% accounted for by retail/leisure uses.  
 
In addition over 129,000 square metres of floorspace was under construction at the 
end of 2006 – this very large amount of floorspace currently being constructed is 
mainly due to the two warehouse / distribution units being built for Next on 
Brookfields Park (102,000 sq m). This accounts for the fact that 81% of floorspace 

Page 50



 4 

under construction is for distribution use with 14% being business/office use and 5% 
for general industrial.    
 
The vacancy rate has increased from 2005 to stand at 13.4% - this can partly be 
attributed to the increase in floorspace constructed during the last couple of years 
(vacancy rates have historically tended to rise in / following years with high 
construction), some of which has been speculative.  
 
It should be noted that this is the first year that the total amount of occupied 
floorspace in the Borough has fallen, by approximately 6,000m2. This can 
predominantly be accounted for by the vacating of a number of significant units 
during the last year due to company closures; Excel Logistics at Templeborough and 
Manvers, KP foods at Eastwood and Breck Heating Services at Masbrough, which 
total 47,000 m2 of floorspace. 
 

Year

Total 
Floorspace 
(Sq m)

Floorspace 
Vacant (Sq 
m)

Floorspace 
Occupied 
(Sq m)

Vacancy 
Rate (%)

1996 2,054,583 158,054 1,896,529 7.7
1997 2,065,171 165,707 1,899,464 8.0
1998 2,126,526 166,967 1,959,559 7.9
1999 2,196,321 185,438 2,010,883 8.4
2000 2,320,851 300,897 2,019,954 13.0
2001 2,359,256 267,519 2,091,737 11.3
2002 2,399,785 235,121 2,163,707 9.8
2003 2,449,774 254,017 2,195,757 10.4
2004 2,483,462 247,307 2,236,155 10.0
2005 2,563,176 307,075 2,256,101 12.0
2006 2,598,762 348,452 2,250,310 13.4
Change 96-06 544,179 190,398 353,781 5.7   

Despite the continuing large amounts of floorspace being constructed and the on-
going strong interest from developers in many of the employment sites in 
Rotherham, it appears that some areas / properties are less attractive to the market 
– possibly due to older premises and/or less desirable location. At the end of 2006; 
146,840m2 (41% of vacant floorspace) had been vacant for more than 2 years, of 
which 92,116m2 had been vacant for over 4 years (although this represents just 
3.5% of the total floorspace). 

Page 51



 5 

Floorspace (sq.m.) by time vacant

Floorspace 
vacant 3 - 4 

years, 18,241, 5% Floorspace 
vacant 2 - 3 

years, 36,483, 
10%

Floorspace 
vacant 1 - 2 

years, 71,711, 
21%

Floorspace 
vacant less than 
1 year, 129,901, 

38%
Floorspace 

vacant more 
than 4 years, 
92,116, 26%

 With the exception of some speculative development in the Dearne and the Guest 
and Chrimes and Gloystame sites; most of the long-term vacancies are older, 
smaller units (<500m2), often in poor condition and located in the more deprived 
areas of the Borough. These are difficult to let in their current conditions, but not 
economically viable for the owners to refurbish to a higher standard. 
 
 
The total floorspace vacant for over 4 years has risen from 75,400m2 to 92,116m2 
during the last year. Although Templeborough  Rolling Mill( 12,700m2) has been 
removed following its demolition, this is more than offset by the Guest & Chrimes site 
(23,000m2) moving into this category, along with  Golden Smithies (4,600m2) at 
Manvers and a number of other smaller units. For a full breakdown and details of 
units which have been vacant for more than 4 years please see appendix 1. 
 
Economic Land Uptake: 
In 2006 there was 20.05 hectares of land taken up for economic development (57% 
in the Southern area), a fall from the very high rate experienced in 2005 but the 
second highest rate since 2000. The average annual rate of land developed for 
economic purposes over the past five years is 16.0 hectares.  

Page 52



 6 

Uptake of Land for Economic Development, 1996-2006

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

H
ec

ta
re
s

Southern
Central
Northern

  
A further 33.2 hectares was under development at the end of 2006 (20.5 hectares of 
this due to the Next development at Brookfields Park). 
 
Economic Land Availability: 
 
In 2006 there were 291.2 hectares of available undeveloped land in Rotherham 
identified for industrial or mixed use.  Of this total, only 137.3 hectares (47%) could 
be promoted in the short term: 
- 38.3 hectares (13%) of this economic land bank was immediately available for 
economic purposes  
- 99.0 hectares (34%) required infrastructure development,  
 
80.9 hectares (28%) required reclamation and infrastructure development before it 
could be utilised for economic purposes – most of this being in private ownership. 
 
73.0 hectares (25%) were committed to or retained by industry for future 
development. 

Page 53



 7 

Rotherham's Economic Land Bank 2006 (Total 291.2 ha)

IV. = 28%

III. = 34%

II. = 13%

I. = 25%

I. Retained for Development 73.0 ha (25%)
II. Land on the Market/Suitable for Promotion 38.3 ha (13%)
III. Land Requiring Infrastructure Provision 99.0 ha (34%)
IV. Land Requiring Reclamation/Infrastructure - 80.9 ha (28%)

   
The progress made in 2006 compared to 2005 is shown in the following table. The 
amount of land requiring reclamation fell by over 19 ha, which is due to the 
reclamation completions at Waverley (17.8ha) and Templeborough (Phase 1 
Phoenix Park, 1.5ha). 
 

ha % ha %
Category I (Retained for Development) 30.2 10 73.0 25
Category II (Land on the Market/Suitable for Promotion) 61.0 16 38.3 13
Category III (Land Requiring Infrastructure Provision) 117.4 26 99.0 34
Category IV (Land Requiring Reclamation/Infrastructure) 100.2 49 80.9 28
Total (ha / %) 308.8 100 291.2 100

20062005Category

   
As a comparison, in 2003 there were 176.5 hectares of land that required 
reclamation in the borough. 
 
 
8. Finance 
 
None 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
Since 1998 Rotherham has experienced high construction rates of new economic 
floorspace and high rates of uptake of land for economic development. This has 
resulted in an increase in the local employment rate (now close to the national 
average) and 24,000 new workplace jobs in the borough since 1998 (Source: ONS 
Annual Business Inquiry 2005). However there is no guarantee that construction / 
development rates will continue at this high rate (some development will undoubtedly 
have taken place due to funding/incentives under Objective 1 / Regeneration 
schemes which are coming to an end). 
 

Page 54



 8 

Rotherham must continue to be attractive as a place to invest, with the right mix of 
available land and property, and a well-skilled local workforce. There is evidence that 
some areas / properties are less attractive to the market – particularly older 
premises. Despite a large amount of undeveloped land in Rotherham a significant 
proportion still requires reclamation (which can be expensive) and is in private 
ownership – at the current rate of take-up this land would require development to 
ensure investors / developers have the necessary choice of sites and premises. 
 
Consultants GVA Grimley LLP have just finished the South Yorkshire Land and 
Property Study February 2007, on behalf of Renaissance South Yorkshire.  The 
study highlights the shortage of readily available land and the potential this has for 
constraining the sub-region’s economic growth: 
 

“…only 156 hectares of land identified within this study as being known to be 
unconstrained.” 

 
The report states the main cause of land not being readily available is constrained 
site access, with 19.9% (73.82 hectares) of Rotherham’s identified and undeveloped 
employment land suffering from this.  Therefore, available land is highly in demand 
by developers for speculative development, leaving companies requiring land for 
purpose built accommodation at a severe disadvantage.  Public sector land could fill 
such specific needs and help ensure key employers are not lost from the Borough or 
the sub-region, but currently there is only a total of 82 hectares of undeveloped 
public sector owned land across South Yorkshire, with 31.95 hectares of this within 
Rotherham.  However, of this figure, only 1.95 hectares (at Manvers, Parkside) is 
classed as unconstrained publicly owned and undeveloped employment land within 
the Borough. 
 
Therefore, there is a shortage of public sector controlled land available for inward 
investors or relocating companies based on projective needs and current stock 
levels to fulfil expected demand.  The report states: 
 

“The basic lesson to be learned here is for future public sector investment in 
particular to recognise the need for a better match between the demand drivers and 

their property requirements and to tailor the supply strategy accordingly.” 
 

There is a role for the public sector, working in partnership where appropriate, to 
address the need for land to be developed for a specific investor/company 
accommodation purpose (rather than speculative development), and create potential 
for Rotherham Borough to fulfil this need. 
 
This report links closely with the findings of the recent Joint Economy Study 
undertaken by CURS, which reports that the Borough has great potential for growth 
over the next 10 years through innovation and better connectivity.  However, for this 
growth to occur there needs to be suitable amounts of land for development, and the 
Planning and Transportation Directorate estimate that on current projections the 
Borough could have as much as a 144 hectare employment land shortage.  
Therefore, bringing forward derelict and vacant sites for suitable development 
(preferably not speculative, unless in Rotherham town centre) is an important issue. 
 

Page 55



 9 

It is not known what the potential impact of the abolition of rate relief will be, as from 
April 2008 vacant premises will no longer will eligible for rate relief after an initial 3-6 
month period of grace.  The Business Premises Renovation Allowance (BPRA) also 
came into force on April 11th 2007, permitting anyone who owns or leases a business 
property in a designated deprived area that has been vacant for more than a year to 
claim full tax relief on their capital spending on the conversion or renovation of the 
property, in order to bring it back into business use.  It would be hoped that these 
measures will help bring some derelict premises in the Borough’s more deprived 
areas onto the market for development, as well as damping down the currently high 
levels of speculative build. 
 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
This has links to the Community Strategy themes of: 
Achieving – Rotherham must provide the right amount and mix of employment sites 
to continue to attract new investors into the borough and encourage existing 
businesses to stay in the area and expand. This will attract people to work in the 
borough, ensure a high rate of employment and provide a mix of jobs which local 
people can access. 
Sustainable Development – Ensuring sufficient local employment opportunities will 
encourage people to remain in the borough and help reduce the need for out 
commuting. 
 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
The report was endorsed by CMT at its meeting on 11th June 2007 
 
Data taken from ARIES employment land database - updated by annual survey of 
employment sites in the borough (undertaken December 2006).  Consultation has 
taken place with the RiDO Business Development Team, RiDO Development Team, 
and the Planning and Transportation Directorate. 
 
 
 
Contact Name :  
 
Neil Rainsforth 
Research & Spatial Analysis Officer 
Forward Planning 
Tel: 823854 
mailto:neil.rainsforth@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
Simeon Leach 
Economic Strategy Manager 
RiDO 
Tel: 823828 
e-mail: simeon.leach@rotherham.gov.uk 
 

Page 56



 10 

Appendix 1 
 

The following table lists all those properties which have been vacant for at least four 
years – i.e. they have been unoccupied at the time of each annual survey since 
2002. 

 
INDUSTRIAL ESTATE PROPERTIES: VACANT 4 YEARS + 
(Floorspace figures are in square metres) 

 
NORTHERN AREA 
Units vacant over 4 years = 26 33,859 
Estate: Brampton Ellis Enterprises 
Brampton Road, Wath - Plot 1, Unit 21 14 
Brampton Road, Wath - Plot 1, Unit 30 27 
Comments: 
Both these units have damp problems so cannot be let (due to their small size 
uneconomic to repair);  
 
 
Estate: Kilnhurst 
Thomas Street, Plot 17 25 
Thomas Street, Plot 17 185 
Thomas Street, Plot 15, Unit 2 190 
Comments: 
Thomas street – older miscellaneous buildings, poor environment, poor 
access 
Estate: Manvers Bolton Road 
Plot 1, Unit A 2,160 
Plot 1, Unit C2 1,725 
Plot 1, Unit D1 3,060 
Plot 2, Unit 32 293 
Comments: 
Houndhill Park (Plot1) – backing onto main Manvers Road. 3 of 7 units still 
vacant. 
 
Plot 2 – REAL workshops 
These are only suitable for industrial uses and difficult to let due to age and 
small size (this size being more suitable for office purposes). 
 
Estate: Manvers Brookfields Park 
Plot 1 5,800 
Plot 1 3,690 
Comments: 
Speculative build call centres – have recently been off the market whilst being 
sold to new investor.  
Estate: Manvers Farfield Park 
Plot 3 (part of unit) 1,240 
Plot 4, Unit 4B 220 

Page 57



 11 

Comments: 
Plot 3 part of unit with ‘Buy as you view’. 
Plot 4 modern office units (1999) 
 
Estate: Manvers Golden Smithies 
Plot 1, Unit 5 6,655 
Plot 1, Unit 7 4,645 
Plot 7 1,700 
Comments: 
Unit 5 is Callflex Park – some interest for varying uses. 
Unit 7 speculative build offices / call centres – some interest for varying uses. 
Plot 7 – Innovate Offices, now available to buy which may raise interest. 
 
Estate: Wath West Industrial Estate 
Derwent Way, Plot 5, Unit 6 120 
Comments: 
Industrial buildings dating from 1979 – need a facelift. 

Estate: Swinton Bridge 
Rowms Lane, Plot 5 350 
Rowms Lane, Plot 5, Unit 2 120 
Rowms Lane, Plot 18, Unit 3 75 
Rowms Lane, Plot 18, Unit 5 55 
Rowms Lane, Plot 18, Unit 9 100 
White Lee Road, Plot 19 60 
White Lee Road, Plot 33, Unit C5 95 
White Lee Road, Plot 33, Unit K1 1,115 
Comments: 
Unit 3 in very poor condition 
White Lee Road Plot 33 part of former UGC (ex Canning Town Glass) 
complex of older buildings and ad hoc development, now managed as an 
industrial estate. Rather poor access. 
Swinton Bridge is an older fragmented industrial area which was improved in 
the 1970’s and 80’s but now some parts have reverted to poor maintenance 
and dilapidation (e.g. Plot 18 Workshops) 
 
Estate: Swinton Meadows 
Meadow Way, Plot 11, Unit 4C 140 
Comments: 
 
 
 
CENTRAL AREA 
Units vacant over 4 years = 30 53,210 
Estate: Barbot Hall 
Hillside Court, Plot 6, Unit 4 75 
Hillside Court, Plot 6, Unit 18 95 
Brookside Court, Scrooby Lane, Plot 12, Unit 9 90 

Page 58



 12 

Mangham Way, Plot 23 320 
Mangham Road, Plot 24 13,210 
Comments: 
Poor environment and unattractive units in former Enterprise Zone (Hillside 
Court / Brookside Court) alongside more prosperous developments (ASD Plot 
3, Nikken Kosakushko Plot 13). 
Plot 24 – ex Gloystarne (logistics) 
 
 
Estate: Brinsworth 
Field View, Plot 3 1,895 
Field View, Plot 5 1,450 
Comments: 
Both plots are subject to planning applications for housing 
Very dilapidated and vandalised. Poor access through residential area. Poor 
street scene. 
 
 
Estate: Eastwood 
Chesterton Road, Plot 13 3,685 
Chesterton Road, Plot 29, Unit 1 55 
Chesterton Road, Plot 29, Unit 10 335 
Chesterton Road, Plot 29, Unit 14 735 
Comments: 
Chesterton Road units in poor quality environment – older buildings.  
 
 
Estate: Former EZ Commercial Area 
Claire Court, Rawmarsh Road, Plot 13, Unit 7 170 
Claire Court, Rawmarsh Road, Plot 13, Unit 16 200 
Comments: 
Claire Court is being demolished in 2007 
 
 
 
Estate: Masbrough Industrial Area 
Don Street, Plot 22 23,200 
Masbrough Street, Plot 42 105 
Wortley Road, Plot 81 (off new block) 1,400 
Comments: 
Plot 22 Ex Guest & Chrimes site – subject to planning applications for 
alternative use(s) 
Plot 81 Ex Robert Jenkins works – old/run down & not available as a whole.  
 
 
Estate: Meadowbank 
Meadowbank Road, Plot 9 420 
Meadowbank Road, Plot 9 870 
Meadowbank Road, Plot 9 1,020 

Page 59



 13 

Meadowbank Road, Plot 9 1,350 
Steel Street, Plot 20 200 
Comments: 
Derelict old works, multiple buildings (Plot 9) 
Street scene on Steel St especially unkempt and access is poor via level 
crossing. 
 
 
Estate: Parkgate 
Fitzwilliam Street, Plot 9 195 
Coleman Street, Plot 19 175 
Craven Street, Plot 37 260 
Craven Street, Plot 37 205 
Barbers Avenue, Plot 38 100 
Barbers Avenue, Plot 38 320 
Comments: 
Plot 37 in very poor condition, back street site – planning permission for 
residential. 
 
 
Estate: Templeborough 
Sheffield Road, Plot 14 120 
Comments: 
Bizspace Units from 2006 – under new management 
 
Estate: Thornhill 
Hope Street, Plot 14, Unit 4C 185 
Primrose Park, Greasbrough Road, Plot 26 770 
Comments: 
 
 
 
SOUTHERN AREA 
Units vacant over 4 years = 6 5,047 
Estate: Aston Common Industrial Area 
Mansfield Road, Plot 9 180 
Comments: 
Small industrial estate on the edge of residential and green belt area. Rear 
plots unkempt and dilapidated (Plot 9 – surplus capacity within Dodds 
Transport site) 
 
Estate: Aven Industrial Park 
Tickhill Road, Maltby, Plot 1, Unit B 4,350 
Tickhill Road, Maltby, Plot 1, Unit F1A 130 
Comments: 
Older units, not in desirable location. 
Unit B now subject to Planning Application to demolish and rebuild with 23 
workshop units (2007)  
 

Page 60



 14 

Estate: Lincoln Street Workshops 
Lincoln Street, Maltby, Plot 1, Unit 10 19 
Comments: 
Poorly maintained workshops which date from 1989. 
 
 
Estate: North Anston Industrial Estate 
Houghton Road, Plot 9 (rear) 335 
Comments: 
Surplus capacity in older buildings – some plots at southern end of estate are 
in poor condition or have unsightly uses / outside storage, etc 
 
 
Estate: Dinnington Industrial Area 
Outgang Lane, Plot 25, Unit 22 33 
Comments: 
Dinnington Business Centre Bizspace units in need of facelift. 
 
 

 
 

TOTAL VACANT FLOORSPACE (4 years +) = 92,116 square metres 
Equivalent to 3.5% of ALL floorspace in Rotherham 
 
 

*Where interest from investors is known this has been highlighted, however there is 
no certainty that this interest will result in the premises being let. There is also 
difficulty in obtaining information on some properties - all are in private ownership 
and the owner and/or their intention for the property is often unclear. There may also 
in the future be pressure for some of these sites to be considered for alternative 
uses, especially for housing development. 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



 

 1 

 
 
                                                    
1.  Meeting: Regeneration and Asset Board  

2.  Date: 11th July 2007 

3.  Title: Strong and Prosperous Communities 
The Local Government White Paper October 2006 
Community Buildings Review and  
Area Asset Management Plans 
Making Assets Work, The Quirk Review Findings 
All Wards 

4.  Programme Area: Environment and Development Services 
 

 
 
 
 
 
5. Summary 
 
The report proposes an integrated comprehensive strategy and 
implementation programme to address the Local Government White Paper 
October 2006, Community Buildings Review, Development of Area Asset 
Management Plans, the Quirk Review Findings, the Government‘s Response to 
the Quirk Review, the Community Assets Fund and the proposed CPA and 
CAA requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
Members are requested to approve the proposed items listed below which are 
detailed in appendix 3.  
 
1. Strategy, principles and governance 
 
2. Next steps 
 
3. Standard reply to asset transfer requests 
  
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL  

Agenda Item 7Page 62



 

 2 

7. Proposals and Detail 
 
Local Government White Paper October, 2006 
 
On 15th November 2006 the Regeneration and Asset Board considered a report, 
presented by the Asset Manager, which provided the Board with a property briefing 
note on the Local Government White Paper October, 2006. 
 
Appendix 1 to the report set out a summary of the key issues of the paper as they 
related to property. 
  
The Board noted that the White Paper recognised Rotherham as an exemplar of 
good practice. 
  
It was pointed out that to maintain this status and implement the proposals in the 
paper, the Council would need to:- 
  
• Develop, in consultation with Rotherham's communities, area asset 

management plans which support the approved community plans. These 
plans would include all Rotherham's assets not just Council assets. 

• Develop and undertake, in consultation with Rotherham's communities, area 
based asset reviews to inform the area asset management plans. 

• Develop and use our property performance data. 
  
A programme for the development of area asset management plans, together with 
a proposed methodology, timescales and resources implications would be 
presented to a future meeting. 
  
It was resolved:-  
 
(1) That the report on the key issues as they relate to property be noted. 
  
(2) That the programme for the development of area asset management plans, 
together with a proposed methodology, timescales and resources implications be 
presented to a future meeting of this Board. 
  
(3) That the report be included on the agenda of the Council's next meeting with the 
three local Members of Parliament. 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



 

 3 

Community buildings review and development of area asset management 
plans 
On 6th December 2006 the Regeneration and Asset Board considered a report, 
presented by the Head of Asset Management, updating the Board on the proposed 
community buildings review and development of area asset management plans. 
  
Reference was made to:- 
• The requirement to consider a process to implement the Saving Investment 

Paper 
• The devolution of the running of the community buildings to communities 

within the framework of the community and corporate plan themes, or 
disposal, as outlined in the Local Government White Paper 

  
It was reported that the IDeA had invited the Council to take part in forming national 
guidelines for the development of Asset Management Plans 
  
In view of the connectivity of these issues it was proposed to develop, in 
consultation with Neighbourhoods and Rotherham's Communities, one integrated 
comprehensive strategy and action programme, together with proposed 
governance, methodology, timescales and resources implications. 
  
It was noted that the proposals were likely to have significant financial and 
resourcing implications, together with an impact in communities. It was reported 
that it was likely that the money to be made available to make community buildings 
fit for handing over to communities, was likely to be funded on a quasi commercial 
borrowing basis from the banks. 
  
It was stressed that the Area Asset Reviews needed to include education and 
neighbourhood establishments, and it was expected that Ward Members would be 
consulted. 
  
A further report would be submitted to a future meeting of the Board in early 2007. 
  
It was resolved:-  
 
(1) That the proposal be approved and the content of the report be noted. 
  
(2) That a further progress report be submitted to the Board in early 2007. 
  
(3) That the Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion receive regular updates on 
the Community Buildings Review and the development of Area Asset Management 
Plans. 

Page 64



 

 4 

The Quirk Review 
The briefing note, attached at appendix 1, covers: 
Making Assets Work  
The findings of the Quirk Review of community management and ownership of 
assets, launched 15th May 2007 
Opening the Transfer Window 
The government’s response to the Quirk Review, launched 22nd May 2007 
Consultation on Community Assets Fund 
Sent out in March 2007 with a closing date of 23rd June for responses 
 
The neighbourhoods strategy manager has submitted a report to the Cabinet 
Member for Neighbourhoods; this report is attached at appendix 2. 
 
It is anticipated that the property related proposals in the Local Government White 
Paper October, 2006 and the Quirk Review recommendations will begin to be 
implemented by central government during spring and summer 2008. 
               
The Way Forward 
The proposed way forward for Rotherham Council to address the Local Government 
White Paper October 2006, Community Buildings Review, Development of Area 
Asset Management Plans, the Quirk Review Findings, the Government ‘s Response 
to the Quirk Review and the Community Assets Fund is outlined in appendix 3. 
       
8. Finance 
 Implementation of the strategy and principles outlined in appendix 3 will have 
significant financial and resource implications across the Council; these will be 
identified in more detail in a future report to the Board if the strategy and principles 
are agreed.      
     
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
The major risk is that the Council does not develop, approve and adequately 
resource an integrated comprehensive strategy and implementation programme and 
issues such as Community Calls for Actions and ‘PROD’ powers are not addressed 
in a robust consistent manner and decisions are made on an ad hoc basis. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
The development of an integrated comprehensive strategy and implementation 
programme will impact on all the Council’s policies, strategies, priorities and 
inspections and the Council’s total performance. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 65



 

 5 

11. Background Papers and Consultation 
• The Local Government White Paper – Strong and Prosperous Communities 

(October 2006) 
• Making Assets Work – The Quirk Review of community management and 

ownership of public assets (May 2007) 
• Opening the transfer window – The government’s response to the Quirk Review 

of community management and ownership of public assets (May 2007) (DCLG) 
• Circular 06/2003: Local Government Act 1972 general disposal consent 

(England) 2003 disposal of land for less than the best consideration that can be 
reasonably be obtained 

• Towards Better management of Public Sector Assets: A Report to the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer – Lyons, M. 2004 

• Report to Regeneration and Asset Board 18 October 2006 on the review of the 
future of community buildings managed by the facilities management team in 
Economic and Development Services 

• Report to Regeneration and Asset Board 15 November 2006 on strong and 
prosperous communities; the local government white paper, October 2006 

• Report to Regeneration and Asset Board 6 December 2006 on Community 
Buildings Review and Area Asset Management Plans 

• Report to Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 2 July 2007 on Making Assets 
Work-The Quirk Review 

• Capital and Asset Review Team Members 
 
                                             
Contact Name : Arnold Murray, Asset Manager, Economic & Development  
                           Services.    Ext. 2103 
                            arnold.murray@rotherham.gov.uk 
                         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



 

 6 

               Appendix 1 
 
The Quirk Review 
 
Briefing Note 

 
This briefing note covers: 
 
Making Assets Work 
The findings of the Quirk Review of community management and ownership of 
assets launched 15th May 2007  
 
Opening the Transfer Window 
The government’s response to the Quirk Review launched 22nd May 2007 
 
Consultation on Community Assets Fund 
Sent out in March 2007 with a closing date of 23rd June for responses 
 
 
Making Assets Work 
 
Communities Secretary Ruth Kelly announced in September 2006 that there was to 
be a review of the community management and ownership of public assets which 
was to be chaired by Barry Quirk.  The ‘Quirk Review’ terms of reference were to find 
ways to overcome barriers to community management and ownership of assets, 
taking into account the need to manage risk. 
 
The Quirk launch was held in Sheffield at the Burton Street Project, a community 
based regeneration organisation in North Sheffield which has brought back into use, 
a dilapidated Victorian school which is now used by up to 2,000 people every week.  
Burton Street is one of the examples within the Quirk report of what can be achieved. 
 
The three principal conclusions from the report are that; 
• Asset Transfer should take place where it can realise social or community 

benefits, without risking wider public interest concerns 
• The benefits of community ownership of assets can outweigh the risks involved, 

in appropriate circumstances and 
• Risks can be minimised and managed by drawing on the experience of others. 
 
Despite this positive message, many in local authorities will be nervous of the risks, 
and wary of promoting asset transfer. Such a reaction is not appropriate as the 
bigger picture should be looked at when responding to this initiative. 
 
There are clear implications for local authorities when considering transfer of the 
management or ownership to the community of one of its buildings.  It is important to 
properly and thoroughly assess these implications.  The practical issues must be 
examined, potential risks identified and the potential benefits that asset transfer may 
bring to a particular community assessed. Therefore it is essential that a multi 
disciplinary approach is adopted utilising all appropriate resources both within and 
outside the Council so that the wider view of the potential risks and benefits is taken. 

Page 67



 

 7 

 
During the course of the review for ‘Making Assets Work’ a number of issues were 
raised directly to the review group.  These are real issues of concern, that it is hoped 
will be dealt with in more detail within further guidance to be published.  Here is a 
selection of some of the key issues that were raised. 
 
1. Once a building has been transferred it could be ‘lost’ to the community.  

How can we know that the needs of today’s community represent those of 
tomorrow? 

 
Quirk says: The expectations of the parties should be clearly documented, and the 
governing instrument of the community group should reflect the benefits that the 
parties desire to achieve for the ‘whole community’.  Restrictions can be imposed as 
an ‘asset lock’ preventing inappropriate use of the asset. 
 
Discussion point: This is an opportunity to introduce a corporate approach to 
reviewing our asset portfolio and balancing the pressures of maximisation of capital 
receipts with the need to achieve community benefits through asset transfer.  It is 
essential that asset management and community development teams work together 
to ensure the development of a genuine holistic approach at the local level. 
 
2. Buildings that could be transferred to the community often require 

significant capital investment to bring them back into use or to sustain 
continued use.  How will this be funded? 

 
Quirk says: There are some funding sources available in addition to local authorities 
and charitable foundations including the new £30m Community Asset Transfer Fund.  
Transferring assets to the community provides collateral which opens up new 
funding opportunities e.g. from commercial banks. 
 
Discussion point: No single source of funding can meet all circumstances, and it is 
essential that the financial implications of transfer are thoroughly considered to 
enable all opportunities to be identified.  Potentially community groups have the 
opportunity to apply for a number of funding sources unavailable to local authorities.  
Each circumstance could be very different requiring a positive and robust approach 
where authorities work with community groups to develop realistic business cases.  
Authorities need to identify short and longer term savings (and potential costs) as 
well as contribution to strategic outcomes associated with transfer and introduce all 
these into the consideration. Restrictions need to be imposed as an ‘asset lock’ 
preventing inappropriate subsequent  transfer of the asset resulting in the loss of the 
asset to the community. 
 
3. Managing, developing and sustaining building use is a technical business; 

do the local community have the required skills and capacity and are they 
aware of their responsibilities in managing the asset. 

 
Quirk says: A skills and capacity building programme is to be launched to include 
organisational development on community management and ownership of assets.  
This will include a capacity building programme for local authorities on asset 
management.  There will also be access for the community organisations to a 

Page 68



 

 8 

national pool of expert advisors relating to the transfer and management of land and 
buildings and the involvement of specialist financial expertise where appropriate. 
 
Guidance will be published covering all aspects of local authority asset management 
along with a tool kit for local authorities and other public bodies on risk assessment 
and risk management in asset transfer to communities. 
 
Discussion point: It is essential that a full skills audit is undertaken as part of any 
asset transfer, so that the authority and the local community can have confidence 
that the building will be well managed.  It is also important that the respective 
responsibilities of the parties are clearly established, agreed and documented.  
Whilst help is available to community organisations it could be that we develop our 
own local guidance and support for community transfer in our area.  At the launch of 
the government’s response to Quirk, Phil Woolas warned that this was not an excuse 
for local authorities to simply transfer liability for their worst performing assets to the 
community sector. 
 
4. Local authorities finances are finite, budgets are being continually 

stretched and there is continual pressure to maximise capital receipts.  Is 
this in direct conflict with the transfer of assets to the community? 

 
Quirk says: Local authorities have a duty to promote well being in their 
communities.  The case studies show that asset transfer can bring real benefits to 
neighbourhoods, giving them a sense of civic pride and an engagement with others 
in the community.  Asset transfer has to be seen as a mechanism to achieve 
corporate goals. 
 
Discussion point: A balance has to be reached.  In some cases, the transfer of an 
asset may deliver our strategic asset objectives.  In other cases the two may be in 
conflict.  Poorly prepared authorities will not be able to identify the difference 
between the two.  It is essential that we develop robust option appraisal approaches 
so that community benefits can be assessed objectively against corporate objectives 
and potential efficiencies.  
 
5. What are the implications for those authorities who don’t take seriously 

requests for community management and ownership of assets? 
 
Quirk says: Where a community organisation’s request to take over a building is not 
taken seriously they can involve the elected councillor, who will be able to address 
this through a ‘Community Call for Action’.  If the request from the organisation is for 
the transfer of vacant, derelict or underused land or buildings, then recourse is 
available through a Public Request to Order Disposal (PROD).  Discussions are also 
taking place with the LGA about how they can ensure that Local Authorities take 
requests for community management and ownership of particular assets seriously. 
 
Discussion point: It is hard to gauge the likely response from the community sector, 
in terms of the numbers of assets that will be involved.  Nevertheless we need to 
prepare ourselves for approaches.  If authorities are not taking strategic views of 
their property assets, and are not certain why certain assets are being retained and 

Page 69



 

 9 

have inadequate performance data across the portfolio, they will be less able to 
respond in informed ways to such approaches. 
 
6. How can authorities protect the use of public money, where a public body 

has made a grant or disposed of the asset at less than market value 
 
Quirk says: Historically clawbacks have been imposed by authorities, meaning that 
authorities could clawback the proceeds if assets were sold or any profit generated 
from the asset use.  This has acted as an impediment to community organisations 
from using assets as collateral for borrowing.  DCLG will take a lead to encourage 
central government departments, local authorities and other public bodies to review 
their approach to clawbacks. 
 
Discussion point: Again it is a question of striking the right balance.  If the purpose 
of an asset transfer is to facilitate securing external funding, and that funding will 
require collateral, then clearly the nature of any ‘protection’ for the authority needs to 
be carefully structured.  Risk has to be balanced with potential benefits. 
 
7. What about the efficiency agenda is there a workable balance between 

generating capital receipts and disposing of public assets at less than 
market value? 

 
This is one of the areas where the questions are still left unanswered.  Quirk doesn’t 
really provide any solution, probably because there aren’t any.  This is where two 
government polices seem to be at odds and local authorities may feel pressure to 
resist approaches from the community sector in order to achieve projected capital 
receipts and softer community benefits and outcomes will often be more difficult to 
identify than financial hard facts.  This is where authorities will need to be quite 
imaginative in their approach and look at each and every instance.  It will be far too 
easy to say ‘no’ each time, based on simple financial criteria.  It is fair to say this is 
where the much overused term ‘thinking outside the box’ really needs come into 
consideration. 
 
Opening the Transfer Window 
 
The government’s response to Quirk was launched by Phil Woolas MP at a 
Development Trusts Association (DTA) symposium in London. In short, the 
government are accepting the recommendations of the Quirk Review in full and 
‘Opening the Transfer Window’ sets out their outline proposals for how these will be 
implemented.  Phil Woolas stated that the proposals were ‘common sense’ and that 
Gordon Brown was ‘personally committed to the agenda’. 
 
There was an interesting question and answer session at the end of the event and 
the audience was very much dominated by ‘third sector’ organisations.  Indeed it is 
fair to say that local authority property professionals came in for a bit of criticism from 
one or two of the delegates.  One in particular referred to how he had contacted 
asset managers in two authorities since the launch of the Quirk report and neither 
had knowledge of the review and suggested that it was unlikely that they would 
dispose of any property to the community sector at less than market value.  This was 

Page 70



 

 10 

clearly not an isolated case and we need to be prepared to examine every approach 
in an open, objective and fair manner. 
 
The government’s proposals for implementation of the Quirk findings fall into seven 
main areas as follows: 
 
• Raising awareness of the review findings and sharing ideas on how to 

apply them  
Clearly if the DTA delegates experience is anything to go by, there are still 
property professionals within the Local Government who haven’t heard of the 
Quirk review.  The government propose to use a number of existing channels to 
get the message to the various stakeholders.  

 
• Demonstrating how Asset Transfer can be done  

A demonstration programme is to be set up between June 2007 – March 2008 
working in 20 selected areas developing models of effective partnership between 
Local Authorities and community sector organisations.  The successful models 
will be promoted more widely from April 2008 onwards.  
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services have submitted a bid to the demonstration 
programme for a community land trust in collaboration with the Maltby 
Community Development Trust. 

 
• Strengthening Bottom up pressure  

This refers to the use of Community Calls for Actions and ‘PROD’ powers already 
covered earlier within this briefing.  The government proposes to monitor the 
effectiveness of these mechanisms and explore whether further ways will need to 
be introduced to ensure that communities have the levers and opportunities they 
need. 

 
• Developing Specialist Advice  

Two key areas of interest in this section.  The first that updated Asset 
Management guidance will be drafted by April 2008 in partnership between LGA, 
RICS and the IPF.  Secondly a new resource will be available from April 2008 
providing checklists for risk management. 

 
• Resources  

Government will bring together potential funders to explore the opportunities for 
more collaboration within this area and consider what extra support may be 
provided in the future. 

 
• Promoting the Benefits  

This refers to the on-going promotion of this initiative over the next three years 
using a variety of methods and channels.  One suggestion is through ‘a reality TV 
format’ to promote the concept to the wider public. 

 
• Reviewing Achievements and Measuring Success  

The government will continue to monitor and measure achievements in the 
future.  In particular the original Quirk review team will be re-convened in twelve 
months to consider the impact of the recommendations so far. 
 

Page 71



 

 11 

 
The document goes on to include a chapter listing partner organisations and 
contacts and then provides a timeline for implementation for the proposals. 

 
Consultation on Community Assets Fund 
 
Much has been said about the Government’s proposed £30 million to support 
partnerships between local authorities and community-led, third sector organisations.  
The fund is intended to offer capital to refurbish assets and will be managed by The 
Big Lottery Fund on behalf of the Office of the Third Sector. 
 
The consultation document sets out some of the underlying principles that will 
govern the fund and requests views on some of the aspects of how the fund will work 
in practice. 
 
Responses were due by 23rd June 2007; a summary of these, and final criteria for 
the fund will be announced, together with guidance, application information and 
timescales in the summer. 
 
The fund will be confined to covering capital expenditure on refurbishment and the 
consultation document includes seven key principles that govern the way the fund 
will work.  In short these are: 
 
• A flexible approach is required 
 
• Grants will be made to strong partnerships between local government and the 

third sector reflecting the range of needs of the local community. 
 
• Partnerships must demonstrate strong community endorsement. 
 
• Any proposal needs to be part of a strategic/corporate approach to asset 

management 
 
• Approaches need to have robust business cases that aim at long term financial 

stability. 
 
• Risk will be managed using safeguards such as business planning, independent 

expert advice, feasibility studies, ongoing financial agreements and robust 
governance arrangements. 

 
• Refurbishment must include consideration of environmental issues and the 

reduction of running costs 
 
In addition, financial intermediaries will be required to draw in further investment and 
expertise, and bids will need to link with capacity building programmes to provide 
organisational development support. 
 
There are ten consultation questions which range from the average amount per 
project to how the fund can influence future policy. A few are highlighted below. 
 

Page 72



 

 12 

Question one envisages the average size of grant to range between £250,000 and 
£500,000. 
 
Question three relates to eligible assets and the document states that this will have a 
broad definition providing an asset transfer would fulfil the principles stated earlier in 
the document.  There are no details of when and, to whom the money will be 
available, one comment was made at the DTA Symposium which inferred that 
money would not be given to local authorities prior to transfer. 
 
Questions five to seven look at how funding should be allocated, whether wide 
distribution across the authorities, targeted at specific areas, or to promote a range 
of different types of approaches and proposals for innovation. 
 
The Office of the Third Sector were keen for as many views and responses as 
possible. 
 
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services have submitted a response on behalf of 
Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council; the response is attached at appendix 2.  
 
Quirk Summary 
 
The message is clear there are barriers and risks to transfer of assets but these can 
be overcome, minimised or managed, there is plenty of experience to draw on and 
sufficient existing legislation to allow it to happen.  However, in order to achieve 
success all parties have to work together, there needs to be political will, managerial 
imagination and a business focussed approach from the public and community 
sectors. 
 
The Quirk review tells us that communities and councils have the potential recipes, 
ingredients and guidelines to make this work, but they need to discover for 
themselves the particular mix which makes the most sense in their unique 
circumstances. 
 
There is no single answer.  What works in one community may not work in another.  
The checks and balances in place in one area, may not be appropriate in another.  
Certainly the additional guidance that is planned will assist local authorities and 
community groups in identifying and understanding the potential risks and bene

Page 73



 

 13 

 

 
 
 

5. Meeting: Cabinet Member for Neighbourhoods 

6. Date: 2 July 2007 

7. Title: Making Assets Work  - The Quirk Review 

8. Directorate: Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 

 
5. Summary 
 
 
This report provides a short briefing on the main findings arising from the Barry Quirk 
Review on community management and ownership of public assets following Sir 
Michael Lyons (2004) findings that there is a relationship between active community 
involvement and economic development.  Translated through into the Local 
Government White Paper – Strong and Prosperous Communities, the White Paper 
promised increased opportunities for communities to manage and own local public 
buildings and land.   
 
Supported by Communities Secretary Ruth Kelly, the Quirk Review has reported that 
transferring public assets to communities not only leads to more responsive services 
that meet local people’s priorities but can also create more confident empowered 
communities with greater civic spirit 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
 
Cabinet Member is asked to: 
 

1) CONSIDER THE EARLY IMPLICATIONS FOR THE COUNCIL ARISING 
FROM THE MAIN FINDINGS OF THE QUIRK REVIEW OF COMMUNITY 
MANAGEMENT AND OWNERSHIP OF PUBLIC ASSETS 

 
2) AGREE THE ESTABLISHMENT OF CROSS DIRECTORATE WORKING 

GROUP TO CONSIDER IDENTIFICATION OF PUBLIC ASSETS THAT 
ARE LIKELY TO BE AFFECTED BY THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF 
THE QUIRK REVIEW 

 
 

 
 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Appendix 2 
Page 74



 

 14 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
The Local Government White Paper – Strong and Prosperous Communities 
(October 2006) signalled the next stage in public sector reform.   The White Paper 
promised increased opportunities for communities to manage and own local public 
buildings and land. In particular it highlighted the role of asset management or 
ownership can play in giving communities the stability and confidence to develop and 
grow, as well as the means of securing external investment. 

 
To support this work Barry Quirk, the Chief Executive of Lewisham Council, was 
commissioned to review the barriers and incentives affecting the transfer of public 
assets to community management and ownership.   

 
The review builds on earlier reports, including the 2004 Lyons Report – Towards 
Better Management of Public Assets and the Joint Home Office and Office of Deputy 
Prime Minister report – Communities Taking Control.  The remit of the review was to 
focus on the greater stake that community-led organisations could have in public 
assets, that is land and buildings currently owned by central or local government or 
their agencies.  The review was restricted to non-housing assets and did not 
cover liabilities. 
 
The review suggests ten fundamental factors that need to be considered in 
overcoming barriers to greater transfer and management of assets: 
 

1) community groups and social enterprises are extremely diverse 
2) often groups are under-capitalised 
3) many of the assets considered by resident and community groups are not 

owned by Local Authorities 
4) community empowerment and asset management has not featured 

strongly within local government strategic community plans 
5) where asset transfer and management has taken place within the context 

of community empowerment this has been piecemeal and not part of an 
overall strategic approach 

6) overall community ownership is not featured within asset management 
plans 

7) often relationships between the council and community sector are short-
term, which causes difficulty for accessing financial means 

8) convening role is beginning to emerge through local strategic partnerships 
and local area agreements 

9) considerable change within the public sector asset base provides 
opportunity, albeit there are likely to be continued problems particularly in 
relation to culture 

10) communities need “recipes” and not “blueprints” to assist in making 
community management and ownership work locally 

 
The report concludes that there are no substantive barriers to prevent councils 
transferring assets into community management or full ownership. The main 
obstacles centre on: 
 

• lack of awareness of existing powers to act 

Page 75



 

 15 

• the need for a change in culture that would enable every community 
having the opportunity to have a greater role in running services and 
owning assets 

 
The review reminds Local Authorities that under the Local Government Act 1972 and 
Circular 06/2003 (the General Disposal Consent”) of the powers to transfer an asset 
to community management and ownership in any manner they wish, including less 
than market value.  However, the review acknowledges that ‘the decision needs to 
be made by comparing the benefits to be gained from a market value proposal and 
the more less tangible community benefits that would accrue from a transfer to 
community use’.  The review further recommends that the communities can be 
supported in their bidding for the management or ownership of a particular public 
asset through recourse to the ‘Community Call for Action’ which means that the 
matter would need to be referred to Overview and Scrutiny Committee for review.  In 
the case of vacant, derelict or underused land or buildings, members of the public or 
community organisations can request the Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government to use powers under legislation introduced in 1980 (scheme 
known as PROD) to deter public sector landowners from holding on to vacant land or 
dwellings unnecessarily. 
 
In considering funding sources to support community organisations, the review sees 
opportunities for more ‘widespread adoption of innovative approaches to the use of 
existing and new funds, to lever in additional finance that is currently not being 
accessed. 
 
The review concludes with a series of recommendations both for central and local 
government. 
 
Central Government Recommendations: 
 

1) development of a toolkit on risk assessment and risk management relating to 
the transfer of asset to communities 

2) publication of more comprehensive and up to date guidance on local 
government asset management 

3) strengthened capacity building and organisational development programme 
supporting local authorities 

4) government funding that could be used for supporting community 
management and ownership to maximise leverage through  specialist 
financial intermediaries 

5) initiate a three  year promotional campaign 
 
Local Government Recommendations: 
 

1) realise community empowerment benefits 
2) consider across all partners, an area wide strategy for the use of assets 

reinforced through Sustainable Communities Strategy and Local Area 
Agreements 

3) undertake property reviews that focus either on a locality or a type of asset 
4) use of Community Call for Action to enable communities to identify 

community assets appropriate for community ownership or management 
 

Page 76



 

 16 

In response to the Quirk Review, Government has agreed to implement the review 
proposals in full through its announcement of its six point action plan – ‘The Opening 
the Transfer Window’ implementation plan which challenges local authorities to 
maximise the transfer of public assets to communities in order to make services 
more responsive and create more confident empowered communities with greater 
civic spirit. 
 
8. Finance 
 
The Quirk review acknowledges that the need for investment in all areas of 
community management and ownership spectrum is immense with no single agency 
or source able to meet this need.  Given this it is proposed that there is a need for a 
range of funding sources. The Quirk review suggests that there are a range of 
sources already in existence: 
 

• Big Lottery Fund - £50m Community Assets Fund 
• Futurebuilders - £125m fund, which in part funds third sector asset based 

development 
• Adventure Capital Fund which support investment in community 

enterprises 
• Cabinet Office £30m Community Assets Fund 
• New £400,000 challenge for councils to become one of twenty pilot areas 

who will transfer up to forty key assets from local authorities to community 
organisations 

 
Consideration is further being given by Government to what other additional support 
may be available for community ownership and management of assets, this will be 
determined by and subject to the outcome of the 2007 Comprehensive Spending 
Review. 
 
Powers under the ODPM Circular 06/2003, Local Government Act 1972 general 
disposal consent (England) 2003 disposal of land for less than the best consideration 
that can be reasonably be obtained, which includes a general consent for small 
disposal provides the mechanisms by which the Local Authority can transfer assets 
to community management and ownership as a legitimate and beneficial option for 
consideration based on comparing the benefits to be gained from a market value 
disposal and the more and less tangible benefits that would accrue from a transfer to 
community use. 
 
Understanding the level of assets, condition of assets and the capacity of community 
organisations to manage community buildings and access potential funding will 
require dedicated officer support.  This officer resource is a challenge that has been 
set by the Communities Secretary Ruth Kelly who requires each council to appoint a 
senior figure directly responsible for increasing community transfer and empowering 
local communities. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 77



 

 17 

9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The Quirk review through discussions with many agencies has found that local 
authorities, community organisations and their networks have been quick to point out 
the danger of transferred property becoming a liability and no asset at all, thus there 
is a clear consensus that risk exists to both the local authority and the community 
organisation.  The review is of the firm view that no barrier to action exists, as long 
as proper steps are taken to assess and manage the risks involved.  However, the 
review did highlight that potential risk can be associated with the following unless 
robust mechanisms are put in place: 
 

• organisation does not have the capacity to take over and manage the 
asset 

• community organisation cannot raise the cash needed to purchase or 
refurbish the asset offered 

• the ability of public bodies to support a particular project is limited by State 
aid rules or other restrictions 

• Inability of community organisations to manage asset effectively 
• Asset not used in public interest, taken over by an unrepresentative or 

unaccountable minority, access to asset not inclusive 
• Community organisation is not able to invest in the asset to meet its longer 

term liabilities for upgrading and cyclical maintenance 
• Reliance of smaller receiving organisations on volunteers through lack of 

resources for professional/support staff 
• Fragmented ownership of assets across an area could impair strategic 

objectives and/or its LSP partners 
• Confusion and lack of awareness over roles, responsibilities and liabilities 

between landlord and community organisation 
• Conflict between competing community organisations for use of, 

ownership or management of asset 
• community empowerment and asset management not featured strongly 

within local government strategic community plans 
 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The Local Government White Paper – Strong and Prosperous Communities sets out 
the new relationship between local government and communities.  It will give more 
power to citizens and communities to have a bigger say in the services they receive 
and the places they live.  It is envisaged that community ownership will bring people 
together, foster sense of belonging and play an important role in enhancing the local 
environment, alleviate poverty and raise people’s aspirations.   The overriding goal is 
that of community empowerment and this will need to be reflected through 
Sustainable Communities Plan and Local Area Agreements.  In support of the 
councils key strategic themes transferring public assets to community management 
and ownership will provide opportunity to enable residents to develop and exercise 
skills associated with learning, involvement and entrepreneurial ship, enhance the 
borough’s public spaces and buildings enabling both cultural and inclusive activity to 
take place, whilst also enabling citizenship and democracy to take place at a local 
level that will support strong, sustainable and cohesive communities 

Page 78



 

 18 

 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 

• The Local Government White Paper – Strong and Prosperous 
Communities (October 2006) 

• Making Assets Work – The Quirk Review of community management and 
ownership of public assets (May 2007) 

• Opening the transfer window – The government’s response to the Quirk 
Review of community management and ownership of public assets (May 
2007) (DCLG) 

• Circular 06/2003: Local Government Act 1972 general disposal consent 
(England) 2003 disposal of land for less than the best consideration that 
can be reasonably be obtained 

• Towards Better management of Public Sector Assets: A Report to the 
Chancellor of the Exchequer – Lyons, M. 2004 

 
 
 
Contact Name : Angela J Smith, Neighbourhood Strategy Manager, telephone 
extension 3412, angela.smith@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 79



 

 19 

      Appendix 3 
 
The Proposed Way Forward 
 
Aim 
To develop one integrated comprehensive strategy and implementation programme 
to address the Local Government White Paper October 2006, Community Buildings 
Review, Development of Area Asset Management Plans, the Quirk Review Findings, 
the Government‘s Response to the Quirk Review and the Community Assets Fund. 
 
Objectives 
Address  
• The key issues outlined below in the Local Government White Paper October 

2006 as they relate to property  
� Promotion of greater choice in services by a variety of means 

Including 
Neighbourhood based participatory budgeting 
Area based property reviews 
Ensuring participation of local citizens in Council activities 
Empowering local people to manage their own neighbourhoods and 
community facilities 
Community Calls for Action 

� A new performance framework intended to make the public’s views on 
service quality the core test of local performance 

� A more radical and ambitious value for money programme with effective 
and direct challenges for more efficiencies and transformation of local 
services 

� Asset Management is vital to achieving cost savings for local authorities 
and helping them to deliver better outcomes for citizens.  
The Beacon councils for Asset Management are highlighted as exemplars 
of good practice 

• The implementation of the Saving Investment Paper regarding the disposal of 
community buildings 

• Develop Community and Area Asset Management Plans to 
� Are to an agreed minimum consistent ‘Rotherham’ standard 
� Provide maximum outcomes for the total community 
� Use all Rotherham’s assets and resources efficiently, effectively and in a 

sustainable manner  
� Maximise value for money expenditure on assets   

• The principal conclusions of the Quirk Review  
� Asset Transfer should take place where it can realise social or community 

benefits, without risking wider public interest concerns 
� The benefits of community ownership of assets can outweigh the risks 

involved, in appropriate circumstances and 
� Risks can be minimised and managed by drawing on the experience of 

others. 
• The Government‘s outline proposals for implementing the Findings of the Quirk 

Review 
� Raising awareness of the review findings and sharing ideas on how to 

apply them 

Page 80



 

 20 

� Demonstrating how Asset Transfer can be done  
� Strengthening Bottom up pressure 
� Developing Specialist Advice 
� Resources 
� Promoting the Benefits 
� Reviewing Achievements and Measuring Success  

• The key principles that will govern the Community Assets Fund 
� A flexible approach is required 
� Grants will be made to strong partnerships between local government and 

the third sector reflecting the range of needs of the local community 
� Partnerships must demonstrate strong community endorsement 
� Any proposal needs to be part of a strategic/corporate approach to asset 

management 
� Approaches need to have robust business cases that aim at long term 

financial stability 
� Risk will be managed using safeguards such as business planning, 

independent expert advice, feasibility studies, ongoing financial 
agreements and robust governance arrangements 

� Refurbishment must include consideration of environmental issues and the 
reduction of running costs 

• The 2008 KLOE which were published in April 2007 for consultation; 
consultation closed in June 2007 

• The move from comprehensive performance assessment comprehensive area 
assessment 

 
Maintain Rotherham’s status as an exemplar of good asset management practice. 
 
Establish and operate a proactive delivery framework to ensure that issues are 
addressed and decisions made in a robust consistent manner and not ad hoc.  
 
Strategy 
 
The Community Involvement Team in the Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 
Directorate will ensure that Community Plans covering the whole of Rotherham 
Borough are produced 
 
The Corporate Property Management Team in the Environment and Development 
Directorate will produce Area Asset Management Plans supporting the above 
Community Plans 
 
The Corporate Property Management Team in the Environment and Development 
Directorate will drive implementation of the above Area Asset Management Plans 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 81



 

 21 

Principles 
 
The Community Involvement Team in the Neighbourhoods and Adult Services 
Directorate will ensure that the Community Plans are 
• Produced to an agreed minimum consistent ‘Rotherham’ standard in 

partnership with the total community 
• Representative of the views of the total community as evidenced by robust 

consultation processes 
• Approved by the total community 
 
The Corporate Property Management Team in the Environment and Development 
Directorate will  
• Ensure that the Area Asset Management Plans 

� Include all Rotherham's assets not just Council assets 
� Support the Community Strategy, the Council’s Corporate Plan, the 

approved Community Plan and all the Partners’ and Stakeholders’ 
strategies and service delivery plans  

� Are developed in consultation with all service deliverers both within and 
outside the Council as evidenced by robust consultation processes  

� Are developed in consultation with the total community as evidenced by 
robust consultation processes 

� Be informed by area asset reviews undertaken to a consistent standard  
� Be informed by all the available geographic and property data 
� Are developed in accordance with the project procedures currently being 

developed in the Asset Management Service, this will ensure that the 
plans 
� Are to an agreed minimum consistent ‘Rotherham’ standard 
� Provide maximum outcomes for the total community 
� Use all Rotherham’s assets and resources efficiently, effectively and in 

a sustainable manner  
� Maximise value for money expenditure on assets  

• Develop, in consultation with all service deliverers both within and outside the 
Council, a programme for the production of area asset management plans 
which will take into account 
� Potential short, medium and long term changes in the communities 
� Identified strengths and weaknesses of the communities 
� Identified opportunities and threats to the communities 
� Timescales in the Community Strategy, the Council’s Corporate Plan, the 

approved Community Plans and all the Partners’ and Stakeholders’ 
strategies and service delivery plans 

 
• Drive implementation of the Area Asset Management Plans in consultation with 

all service deliverers both within and outside the Council and the total 
community 

 
Implementation of the above strategy and principles will have significant financial 
and resource implications across the Council, these will be identified in more detail in 
a future report to the Board if the above strategy and principles are agreed.      
 
 

Page 82



 

 22 

Governance 
 
The Community Involvement Team drive production, consultation and approval of 
the community plans. 
Community plans approved by the total community and Cabinet members for 
Community Cohesion and Neighbourhoods. 
 
The Corporate Property Management Team drive production, consultation and 
approval of area asset reviews and area asset management plans 
Area asset management plans approved by all service deliverers, total community, 
capital and asset review team, ward members and Regeneration and Asset Board 
 
Current Position 
• Community Plans have been produced for some areas of the Borough 
• The standards of the plans are variable 
• The involvement of, consultation with and approval by the total communities 

has been variable 
• No area asset management plans have currently been developed 
 
Next Steps 
If the above strategy, principles and governance are agreed by the Board the 
Corporate Property Management Team in the Environment and Development 
Directorate in consultation with the Community Involvement Team in the 
Neighbourhoods and Adult Services Directorate will produce a further report for the 
Board which will include  
• A Community Plans production programme 
• An Area Asset Management Plans production programme 
• Criteria for the Rotherham standard for the  

� Community Plans 
� Area Asset reviews 
� Area Asset Management Plans 

• Methodologies for the Area Asset Reviews and production of the Community 
and Area Asset Management Plans  

• Financial and resources implications of implementing the strategy for the 
Council, its partners and the community  

 
It should be noted that the appropriate implementation of the above strategy will take 
time.  
 
It is likely that the Council will start receiving requests for transfer of assets before 
the production programmes and plans are developed therefore it is recommended 
that the two short term actions below are implemented immediately 
• A short briefing note is produced and issued to all the communities in 

Rotherham outlining the Council’s strategy and implementation programme 
• When specific requests for transfers of assets are received by the Council they 

will be referred to the Corporate Property Management Team who will 
� Log the request for use when the area asset management plan is 

developed 
� Inform the Community Involvement Team 
� Send the standard reply below to the requester 

Page 83



 

 23 

The Council is currently developing an integrated comprehensive strategy 
and implementation programme for the production of Community and Area 
Asset Management Plans for the whole of the Borough. Your request has 
been noted and will be considered as the Plans are developed for your 
area. 
 

The short briefing note will need to be updated and reissued to all the communities 
at regular intervals. 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



Agenda Item 9Page 85
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 10Page 95
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 11Page 99
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 103
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 104
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 12Page 113
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 13Page 118
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 126
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 14Page 127
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



P
a
g
e
 1

3
0

B
y
 v

irtu
e
 o

f p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
(s

) 3
 o

f P
a
rt 1

 o
f S

c
h

e
d
u
le

 1
2
A

o
f th

e
 L

o
c
a

l G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t A
c
t 1

9
7

2
.

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
t is

 R
e
s
tric

te
d



Agenda Item 15Page 132
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 135
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Agenda Item 16Page 137
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



Page 139
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting held on 13th June, 2007.  (copy attached)
	5 York Consulting Case Study Report.  (report attached)
	6 Industrial Land and Floorspace 2006.  (report attached)
	7 Strong and Prosperous Communities - The Local Government White Paper October 2006 - Community Buildings Review and Area Asset Management Plans - Making Assets Work, the Quirk Review Findings.  (report attached)
	9 Town Centre Safety Manager.  (report attached)
	10 Employment of Police Architectural Liaison Officer.  (report attached)
	11 Rotherham Economic Regeneration Fund.  (report attached)
	Item 5 - RAMB final figures  spreadsheet 0607 June App 1
	Item 5- RERF 0607 final project detail App 2

	12 Aston-cum-Aughton Service Centre - Progress Report.  (report attached)
	13 Land at Longfellow Drive.  (report attached)
	REPORT - LONGFELLOW DRIVE PLAN - APPENDIX 1

	14 Land at Ridgeway Road, East Herringthorpe for extension to Cemetery.  (report attached)
	Appendix 1 of 2

	15 Land at Milton Street, Swinton.  (report attached)
	app 1 milton st

	16 Land and Propety Bank - Capital Receipts update.  (report attached)
	Capital Receipts APPENDIX 1


